
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

 
Monday, November 10, 2014

1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record.  A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes 6 - 10

Regular PM Meeting - November 3, 2014

3. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

3.1 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP14-0019 &
Rezoning Application No. Z14-0036 - (W of) Mountainside Drive, Cedar Creek
Developments Ltd.

11 - 22

To consider an Official Community Plan Amendment and Rezoning application
to amend the Future Land Use designation and rezone portions of the subject
property to accommodate the development of a single family residential
subdivision.

3.1.1 Bylaw No. 11027 (OCP14-0019) - (W of) Mountainside Drive, Cedar
Creek Developments Ltd.

23 - 24

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11027 first reading in order to change the future
land use designations of the subject property from the Single/Two
Unit Residential designation to the Single/Two Unit Residential -
Hillside and the Major Park/Open Space designations and from the
Major Park and Open Space designation to the Single/Two Unit
Residential - Hillside designation.

3.1.2 Bylaw No. 11028 (Z14-0036) - (W of) Mountainside Drive, Cedar Creek
Developments Ltd.

25 - 26

1



To give Bylaw No. 11028 first reading in order to rezone the subject
property from the RU4 - Low Density Cluster Housing zone to the
RU1h - Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area), P3 - Parks and Open Space
and CD2 - Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development
zones and from the P3 - Parks and Open Space zone to the RU1h -
Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone.

3.2 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP14-0021 and
Rezoning Application No. Z14-0041 - 5505 Chute Lake Road, Calcan
Investments Ltd.

27 - 42

The applicant is proposing to amend the Official Community Plan Future Land
Use Designation and to rezone a portion of the subject property in order to
accommodate the development of a single family strata subdivision.

3.2.1 Bylaw No. 11029 (OCP14-0021) - 5505 Chute Lake Road, Calcan
Investements Ltd.

43 - 45

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11029 first reading in order to change the future
land use designation of part of the subject property from the Major
Park &  Open Space designation to the Single/Two Unit Residential
Hillside designation; from the Single/Two Unit Residential
designation to the Major Park &  Open Space designation; form the
Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing) designation to the
Single/Tow Unit Residential - Hillside designation; from the Multiple
Unit Residential (Cluster Housing) designation to the Major Park & 
Open Space designation; from the Single/Two Unit Residential
designation to the Single/Two Unit Residential Hillside designation.

3.2.2 Bylaw No. 11030 (Z14-0041) - 5505 Chute Lake Road, Calcan
Investements Ltd.

46 - 49

To give Bylaw No. 11030 first reading in order to rezone part of the
subject property from the P3 - Parks and Open Space zone to the RH1
- Hillside Large Lot Residential zone; from the RH1 - Hillside Large
Lot Residential zone to the P3 - Parks and Open Space; from the RH3
- Hillside Cluster Housing zone to the RH1 - Hillside Large Lot
Residentia zone; from the RH3 - Hillside Cluster Housing zone to the
P3 - Parks and Open Space zone and from the RH1 - Hillside Large Lot
Residential zone to the RH3 - Hillside Cluster Housing zone.

3.3 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP14-0015 - 1501
& 1511 Tower Ranch Drive and 2160 Tower Ranch Boulevard

50 - 67

To amend Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use in the 2030 Official
Community Plan for a portion of the Tower Ranch Development.

3.3.1 Bylaw No. 11031 (OCP14-0015) - 1501 & 1511 Tower Ranch Drive and
2160 Tower Ranch Boulevard, Parkbridge Lifestyle Communities Inc.,
City of Kelowna & 0977415 BC Ltd.

68 - 74

2



Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11031 first reading in order to change the future
land use designation of a portion of the subject properties from MRL –
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) to S2RES – Single/Two Unit
Residential; PARK - Park and Open Space (public) to S2RES – Single
/ Two Unit Residential; S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential- Hillside
to MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density); S2RESH –
Single/Two Unit Residential- Hillside to PARK – Major Park and Open
Space (public); and PARK – Park and Open Space (public) to
S2RESH – Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside;  from S2RES –
Single/Two Unit Residential to PARK - Park and Open Space (public);
from PARK – Park and Open Space (public) to S2RES – Single/Two
Unit Residential; from S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential to
S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside; from S2RESH -
Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside to S2RESH - Single/Two Unit
Residential; and from REC – Private Recreation (private) to S2RESH –
Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside; from S2RESH – Single/Two Unit
Residential - Hillside to PARK – Major Park and Open Space (public);
from S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside to- PSU - Public
Services / Utilities; from Private Recreation (private) to- PSU - Public
Services / Utilities; and from PARK - Major Park and Open Space
(public) to S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside; and from
PARK - Major Park and Open Space (public) to S2RES – Single/Two
Unit Residential; and from Public Service Utilities (PSU) to
Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside (S2RESH); and from Resource
Protection Area (REP) to Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside
(S2RESH).

3.4 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP14-0011 and
Rezoning Application No. Z14-0026 - 1280 Glenmore Drive, 561655 BC Ltd.

75 - 99

To rezone the portion of the subject property facing Glenmore Drive to RM2 –
Low Density Row Housing in order to develop a freehold five unit townhouse
and keep the remainder of the subject property facing Mountainview Street as
RU1 – Large Lot Housing.

3.4.1 Bylaw No. 11032 (OCP14-0011) - 1280 Glenmore Drive, 561655 BC
Ltd.

100 - 101

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11032 first reading in order to change the future
land use designation of a portion of the subject property from the
MRL - Multiple Residential Low Density designation to the S2RES -
Single/Two Unit Residential designation.

3.4.2 Bylaw No. 11033 (Z14-0026) - 1280 Glenmore Road, 561655 BC Ltd. 102 - 103

To give Bylaw No. 11033 first reading in order to rezone a portionof
the subject property from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the

3



RM2 - Low Density Row Housing zone.

3.5 Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP12-0013 and
Rezoning Application No. Z12-0054, Extension Request - 551 Glenwood
Avenue, John & Alana Marrington

104 - 106

To extend the date for adoption of the OCP Amending Bylaw No. 10772 and
Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10773 from November 13, 2014 to November 13,
2015.

4. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

4.1 Canyon Creek Partnering Agreement – 5050 McCulloch Road 107 - 169

To obtain Council support for the Canyon Creek Partnering Agreement.

4.2 Amended Tourism Signage 170 - 183

To update Council Policy 373 - Tourism Oriented Destination Signs (TODS)
such that wineries and golf course names are permissible on tourist destination
signs and amend the associated fee schedule within Traffic Bylaw No. 8120. 

4.2.1 Bylaw No. 11034 - Amendment No. 25 to Traffic Bylaw No. 8120 184 - 184

To give Bylaw No. 11034 first, second and third readings in order to
amend Schedule 'A', Part 6, Tourist Oriented Destination Sign, of
Traffic Bylaw No. 8120

4.3 Community Sport Delivery Program 185 - 207

To seek Council approval to re-allocate legacy funding from the 2008 BC
Summer Games, currently used for the Sport Education Grant, to create a
Community Sport Delivery Program.

4.4 Amendment No. 4 to Water Regulation Bylaw No. 10480 208 - 211

To seek Council’s approval to amend the Water Regulation Bylaw to adjust the
Water Meter fees and to remove two Utility Billing sections that are no longer
required within this bylaw.

4.4.1 Bylaw No. 11022 - Amendment No. 4 to Water Regulation Bylaw No.
10480

212 - 213

To give Bylaw No. 11022 first, second and third readings in order to
amend Water Regulation Bylaw No. 10480.

4.5 Airport License Agreement - Fortis 214 - 230

To allow Fortis BC Inc. the necessary authority to construct and maintain their
electrical works at the Airport through a License Agreement.

5. Mayor and Councillor Items

4



6. Termination

5



6



7



8



9



10



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 10, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment, Community Planning & Real Estate 
(LB) 

Application: OCP14-0019 / Z14-0036 Owner: 
Cedar Creek Developments 
Ltd. 

Address: (W of) Mountainside Drive Applicant: Dave Lange 

Subject: Official Community Plan Amendment and Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 
PARK – Major Park / Open Space (public) 

Proposed OCP Designation: S2RESH – Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside 
PARK – Major Park / Open Space (public)  

Existing Zone: RU4 – Low Density Cluster Housing 
P3 – Parks and Open Space 

Proposed Zone: 
RU1h – Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) 
P3 – Parks and Open Space 
CD2 – Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-0019 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of part of the Northwest ¼ of Section 14, Township 28, SDYD, Except Plans 
KAP89467, KAP89468, KAP89849, EPP35362, EPP33759, EPP35140 and EPP38359, located (W of) 
Mountainside Drive, Kelowna, BC from the Single / Two Unit Residential designation to the Single 
/ Two Unit Residential – Hillside and Major Park / Open Space designations, and from the Major 
Park / Open Space designation to the Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside designation, as 
shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of the Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 
Department, dated November 10, 2014, be considered by Council;  

AND THAT Council considers the Public Information Session public process to be appropriate 
consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined in the 
Report of the Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services, dated November 10, 2014; 

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0036 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of part of the Northwest ¼ of Section 14, Township 28, 
SDYD, Except Plans KAP89467, KAP89468, KAP89849, EPP35362, EPP33759, EPP35140 and 
EPP38359, located (W of) Mountainside Drive, Kelowna, BC from the RU4 – Low Density Cluster 
Housing zone to the RU1h – Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area), P3 – Parks and Open Space and CD2 

11



OCP14-0019 / Z14-0036 – Page 2 

 
 

– Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development zones, and from the P3 – Parks and Open 
Space zone to the RU1h – Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone, as shown on Map “B” attached 
to the Report of the Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Department, dated November 10, 
2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Zone Amending Bylaw 
be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
issuance of a Preliminary Layout Review Letter by the Approving Officer. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider an Official Community Plan Amendment and Rezoning application to amend the 
Future Land Use designation and rezone portions of the subject property to accommodate the 
development of a single family residential subdivision. 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 

Staff are supportive of the proposal to amend the Future Land Use designations and rezone 
portions of the subject property for Phase 3 of The Creeks development. The applicant has 
submitted a preliminary subdivision layout for review and this application is intended to align the 
OCP designations and zoning with the proposed lot layout and the environmental conditions in 
the area. The overall proposal is in general accordance with the previous submissions for The 
Creeks development. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by contacting the representative for The Highlands at Kettle Valley, which 
is the only landowner in the consultation area. No concerns were identified during this 
consultation. 

OCP Amendments 

The applicant is proposing to amend the OCP Future Land Use designation on a portion of the 
subject property from S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential to S2RESH – Single / Two Unit 
Residential – Hillside. This amendment reflects the area’s hillside conditions and is in keeping 
with the Future Land Use designation of adjacent residential developments. A small portion of 
the subject property is proposed to change from S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential to PARK – 
Major Park and Open Space, which accounts for the actual top of bank for Lebanon Creek and will 
connect with the existing PARK - Major Park and Open Space designation to the west. A portion of 
the property designated PARK – Major Park and Open Space is proposed to be amended to the 
S2RESH – Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside designation to align with the proposed lot layout 
and the top of bank for Lebanon Creek. 

Rezoning 

The applicant is seeking approval to rezone a portion of the subject property from RU4 – Low 
Density Cluster Housing to RU1h – Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area). The type of development will 
be integrated with the adjacent developments while remaining sensitive to the property’s 
hillside features. Rezoning from RU4 – Low Density Cluster Housing to P3 – Parks and Open Space 
is proposed on a small portion of the subject property to align with the proposed OCP designation 
that incorporates the top of bank for Lebanon Creek. Another portion of the subject property is 
proposed to change from the P3 – Parks and Open Space zone to the RU1h – Large Lot Housing 

12



OCP14-0019 / Z14-0036 – Page 3 

 
 

(Hillside Area) zone to reflect the proposed subdivision layout and the actual top of bank 
location. In addition, a small portion of the property is proposed to be rezoned from RU4 – Low 
Density Cluster Housing to CD2 – Kettle Valley Comprehensive Residential Development to 
complete the lot consolidation in the adjacent Kettle Valley development. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The Creeks is a single family residential development in the southwest portion of the City, 
adjacent to Kettle Valley. Phase 1 is located north of Cedar Creek along Farron Court, and Phase 
2 is south of Cedar Creek along Mountainside Drive and Angler Court. Phase 3 will be developed 
on the subject portion of the property, immediately south of Phase 2, and represents the final 
phase of residential development at The Creeks. This area will connect to Phase 2 of The Creeks 
and The Highlands at Kettle Valley currently under development to the north and east, 
respectively. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject portion of the property is located in the City’s Southwest Mission Sector, south of 
The Creeks Phase 2 development and west of The Highlands at Kettle Valley. The remainder of 
the subject property extends west of Lebanon Creek and south to the City boundary. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1h – Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) 
The Creeks Phase 2 (Single family 
dwellings) 

East 
CD2 – Kettle Valley Comprehensive 
Residential Development 

The Highlands at Kettle Valley (Single 
family dwellings) 

South P3 – Parks and Open Space Open space 

West P3 – Parks and Open Space Open space, Lebanon Creek 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13



OCP14-0019 / Z14-0036 – Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map: (W of) Mountainside Drive 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Future Land Use 

Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside (S2RESH).1 Single detached homes for occupancy by one 
family, single detached homes with a secondary suite or carriage house, semi-detached buildings 
used for two dwelling units, modular homes, and those complementary uses (i.e. minor care 
centres, minor public services / utilities, and neighbourhood parks), which are integral 
components of urban neighbourhoods. This designation applies to suburban hillside areas where 
slopes are over 20%. Subdivisions on hillsides over 20% slope will be required to rezone to a 
hillside zone. 

Development Process 

Environmentally Sensitive Area Linkages.2 Ensure that development activity does not 
compromise the ecological function of environmentally sensitive areas and maintains the 
integrity of plant and wildlife corridors. 

Sensitive Infill.3 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height and siting. 

 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Future Land Use Chapter. 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.15.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

14



OCP14-0019 / Z14-0036 – Page 5 

 
 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached memorandum, dated October 9, 2014. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  September 4, 2014  
Date Public Consultation Received:  October 23, 2014  

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Shelley Gambacort, Director, Subdivision, Agriculture & 
Environment 

 

Attachments:  

 
Subject Property Map 
Map “A” 
Map “B” 
Development Engineering Memorandum 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: October 29, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Department, Community Planning 
and Real Estate (DB) 

Application: OCP14-0021/ Z14-0041 Owner: Calcan Investment Inc. 

Address: 5505 Chute Lake Road Applicant: Calcan Investment Inc. 

Subject: Report Z14-0041 OCP14-0021  

Existing OCP Designation: 
Multiple Unit Residential – Cluster Housing / Single / Two 
Unit Residential, Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside / 
Major Park & Open Space 

 

Proposed OCP Designation: 

Multiple Unit Residential – Cluster Housing / Single / Two 
Unit Residential – Hillside / Major Park & Open Space 

 

Existing Zones: 
P3- Parks and Open Spaces, RH1- RH3 

Proposed Zones: RH1 – Hillside Large Lot residential, RH3 – Hillside Cluster 
Housing, P3- Parks and Open Spaces 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-0021 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of part of the North East ¼, Section 14, Township 28, SDYD, Except Plan KAP57304 
located at 5505 Chute Lake Road from the Major Park & Open Space (PARK) to Single/Two Unit 
Residential Hillside (S2RESH), from Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) to Major Park & Open 
Space (PARK), from Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing) (MRC) to Single/Two Unit 
Residential - Hillside (S2RESH), from Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing) (MRC) to Major 
Park and Open Space (PARK) and from Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) to Single/Two Unit 
Residential - Hillside (S2RESH) as shown Map “A1” and MAP "A2" attached to the report of 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Department, dated October 29, 2014 be considered by 
Council; 
 
AND THAT Council considers the Public Information Session public process to be appropriate 
consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined in the 
Report of the Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Department, dated October 29, 2014; 
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0041 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 

27



OCP14-0021 / Z14-0041 – Page 2 

 
 

8000 by changing the zoning classification of part of the North East ¼, section 14, Township 28, 
SDYD, Except Plan KAP57304 located at 5505 Chute Lake Road from the P3 –Parks and Open 
Spaces to RH1 - Hillside Large Lot Residential, from RH1 – Hillside Large Lot Residential to P3 – 
Parks and Open Spaces, from RH3 - Hillside Cluster Housing to RH1 - Hillside Large Lot 
Residential, from RH3 - Hillside Cluster Housing to P3 - Parks and Open Space and from RH1 - 
Hillside Large Lot Residential to RH3 - Hillside Cluster Housing,  as shown Map “B1”, Map "B2" and 
Map "B3" attached to the report of Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Department, dated 
October 29, 2014, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment and the Zone Amending Bylaw be 
forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
issuance of a Preliminary Layout Review by the City of Kelowna’s Subdivision Approving Officer.  

2.0 Purpose  

The applicant is proposing to amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use Designation 
and to rezone a portion of the subject property in order to accommodate the development of a 
single family strata subdivision as discussed above. 

3.0     Subdivision, Agriculture and Environment Department comments 

The applicant is proposing to develop a new 16 large-lot bareland strata residential neighborhood 
adjacent to the Creeks and the Village of Kettle Valley.  The applicant is requesting approval to 
amend the OCP future land use designation and rezone portions of the “Trestle Ridge” property 
(formerly known as Calcan).  Upon discussions between the developer and City of Kelowna Parks 
staff, it was determined that the narrow sliver of land located between the future Upper Mission 
Drive alignment and the proposed Strata road (Road A as shown on the attached plan), currently 
designated as Major Park & Open Space Area in OCP, will not be required as part of the City of 
Kelowna Parks network. Park staff advised that they are not interested in acquiring that narrow 
strip of land for open space given the associated maintenance challenges and costs. 

Subsequently, the developer has expressed interest in amending the OCP designation and zoning 
for that section of land to expand the proposed bareland strata lot sizes (no increase in the 
number of lots).  The developer’s vision is to hook the strata lots across the proposed strata road 
in order to provide the potential for accessory buildings.   

Some of the 16 strata lots (depending on topography) will offer this unique opportunity to store 
additional cars, recreational vehicles and boats within a detached structure that would 
complement the quality and style of the principle building. The applicant will be pursuing a 
Development Variance Permit to enlarge the maximum area for an accessory building on the 
hooked area of strata lots (south of the strata road) to 140m2 (from the 90m2 maximum allowed 
under zoning bylaw 8000).  The proposed accessory buildings would also allow for additional 
recreational and entertainment space above the garage.  The recreational and entertainment 
space above the garage could include game rooms, personal exercise/yoga studios, indoor sport 
courts (i.e. squash), wine cellars, media rooms, libraries, sunrooms and conservatories, etc… 

28



OCP14-0021 / Z14-0041 – Page 3 

 
 

Staff expressed concerns with the potential for conversion of these accessory buildings into 
carriage houses.  In order to alleviate staff concerns, the applicant is proposing to register a 
section 219 covenant against all titles in the development prohibiting suites within the accessory 
buildings.  

Staff realize that this project is unique and will be a first in the Okanagan.  However, given the 
somewhat isolated and hidden location, Staff generally support the proposal and feel the location 
will be an excellent trial for this type of development.     

4.0     Proposal  

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use Designation 
and to rezone a portion of the subject property in order to accommodate the development of a 
single family strata subdivision as discussed above. 

 
4.2 Site Context 

 
Subject Properties Map: 
 

 
  

Subject Property 

29



OCP14-0021 / Z14-0041 – Page 4 

 
 

 

The subject property is located at the Northwest of town in a predominantly single family 

neighbourhood. Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North P3 - Parks and Open Space Resource Protection 

East Outside of city boundary Undeveloped  

South Outside of city boundary Undeveloped 

West 
CD2 – Kettle Valley Comprehensive 
Development Zones 

Single Family Housing 

 

3.0 Current Development Policies 

3.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Future Land Use 

Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES)1:  Single detached homes for occupancy by one family, 
single detached homes with a secondary suite or carriage house, semi-detached buildings used 
for two dwelling units, modular homes, bareland strata, and those complementary uses (i.e. 
minor care centres, minor public services/utilities, convenience facility and neighbourhood 
parks), which are integral components of urban neighbourhoods. Suitability of non-residential 
developments within the neighbourhood environment will be determined on a site-specific basis. 
Nonresidential developments causing increases in traffic, parking demands or noise in excess of 
what would typically be experienced in a low density neighbourhood would not be considered 
suitable.  

5.0      Technical Comments 

Development Engineering Department 

Attached. 

 
Infrastructure Planning and parks 
 
1. All parkland to be dedicated to the City at time of subdivision as titled property with P3 
zoning.  
2. No disturbance to parkland is permissible except as authorized by the City of Kelowna.  
3. Vertical barrier curbs within the roadway to be provided along all park road frontages.  
4.Applicant to provide fencing plan to delineate private / public interface and prevent 
encroachment and trespass.  
5. SROW for public access required over strata road through / adjacent to parkland. 
6. Sidewalk to be constructed along Chute Lake Road to connect proposed off-road Cedar Creek 
Linear Park with the existing section of trail that has already been constructed to the north on 
the Kettle Valley properties. 
7.  Pedestrian Crossing to be provided across Upper Mission Drive to connect both section of 
Cedar Creek Linear Park. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Future Land Use Chapter. 

30



OCP14-0021 / Z14-0041 – Page 5 

 
 

7.  Emergency Access route must be located in such a way that it does not cross over Lebanon 
Creek Watercourse or encroach into the Lebanon Creek riparian management area. 
8.  Any stormwater detention facilities should be located outside of titled parkland. 

 

Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: September 17, 2014  
Public Notification Received:  October 22, 2014 

 

Report prepared by: 

      
Damien Burggraeve, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Shelley Gambacort, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 

 

Attachments: 

Map A 
Map B 
Subject Property Map 
Subdivision Layout 
Development Engineering Requirements 
Public Consultation 
 

31



32



5697

5691
5687

5683

5673568456885692
5696

5505

5618

JASPER WAY

¯

MAP "A" OCP AMENDMENT
Proposed Property Lines
MRC to PARK
MRC to S2RESH
PARK to S2RESH
S2RESH to PARK
Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing)
Major Park and Open Space
Single / Two Unit Residential
Single / Two Unit Residential - Hillside

OCP14-0021   MAP#1

This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.

Rev. Oct 23, 20140 4020 Metres

Subject Property Notes:
Amend the OCP for a portion of the Subject Property
from Single/Two Unit Residential Hillside (S2RESH)
to Major Park and Open Space (PARK).

Subject Property Notes:
Amend the OCP for a portion of the Subject Property
from Major Park and Open Space (PARK) to
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH).

Amend the OCP for a portion of the Subject Property
from Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing) (MRC)
to Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH).

Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the Subject Property
from Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing) (MRC)
to Major Park and Open Space (PARK).

Subject Property Notes:

33



5667

5661

5655

5649

5652

5643

5639

5637
5636 5631

5629

5625

5621

5624

56305636

5613
5612

5505

5618

5618

MOUNTAINSIDE DR

JASPER WAY

¯

MAP "A" OCP AMENDMENT
Legal Parcel
Proposed Property Lines
MRC to PARK
PARK to S2RESH
S2RESH to PARK
Multiple Unit Residential (Cluster Housing)
Major Park and Open Space
Single / Two Unit Residential
Single / Two Unit Residential - Hillside

OCP14-0021   MAP#2

This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.

Rev. Nov 05, 20140 4020 Metres

Subject Property Notes:
Amend the OCP for portions
of the subject property from
Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES)
to Major Park and Open Space (PARK).

Amend the OCP for portions of the subject property
from Major Park and Open Space (PARK) to
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH).

Subject Property Notes:

Amend the OCP for a portion of the subject property
from Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES) to
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside (S2RESH).

Subject Property Notes:

Subject Property Notes:
Amend the OCP for a portion
of the subject property from
Single/Two Unit Residential (S2RES)
to Major Park and Open Space (PARK).

34



CD2

RH3

P3

RH1

RINDLE
CT

MO
UN

TA
IN

SI
DE

DR ¯

This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.

MAP "B" PROPOSED ZONING

Rev. Oct 23, 2014

P3 to RH1
RH1 to P3
RH1 to RH3
RH3 to P3
RH3 to RH1

Zoning
Legal Parcel
Proposed Property Lines

File #Z14-0008   Map#1

0 4020 Metres

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from RH3 Hillside Cluster Housing
to P3 Parks and Open Space.

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone portions of the subject property
from RH3 Hillside Cluster Housing
to RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential.

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential 
to RH3 Hillside Cluster Housing.

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone portions of the subject property
from P3 Parks and Open Space
to RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential.

Subject Property Notes:

35



CD2

RH1

P3

MOUNTA
INSIDE D

R

¯

This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.

MAP "B" PROPOSED ZONING

Rev. Oct 23, 2014

P3 to RH1
RH1 to P3
Zoning
Legal Parcel
Proposed Property Lines

File #Z14-0041   Map#2

0 3015 Metres

Rezone portions of the subject property
from RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential
to P3 Parks and Open Space.

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone portions of the subject property
from P3 Parks and Open Space
to RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential.

Subject Property Notes:

36



CD2

RH1

P3

JASPER WAY ¯

This map is for general information only.
The City of Kelowna does not guarantee its
accuracy. All information should be verified.

MAP "B" PROPOSED ZONING

Rev. Oct 27, 2014

P3 to RH1
RH1 to P3
Zoning
Legal Parcel
Proposed Property Lines

File #Z14-0041   Map#3

0 4020 Metres

Rezone a portion of the subject property
from P3 Parks and Open Space
to RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential.

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone portions of the subject property
from RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential 
to P3 Parks and Open Space.

Subject Property Notes:

Rezone portions of the subject property
from RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential 
to P3 Parks and Open Space.

Subject Property Notes:Rezone a portion of the subject property
from P3 Parks and Open Space
to RH1 Hillside Large Lot Residential.

Subject Property Notes:

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 11/10/2014 

RIM No. 1250-20 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: OCP14-0015 Owners: 

Parkbridge Lifestyle 
Communities Inc. 
City of Kelowna 
0977415 B.C. LTD.,         
INC. No. BC0977415 

Addresses: 
1511 Tower Ranch Drive  
2160 Tower Ranch Boulevard 
1501 Tower Ranch Drive 

Applicants: 
MMM Group 
City of Kelowna 

Subject: OCP Amendment 

Existing OCP Designation: 

MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 
S2RESH – Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside 
PARK – Major Park and Open Space (public) 
 

Proposed OCP Designation: 

S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 
S2RESH – Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside 
MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
PARK – Major Park and Open Space (public) 
PSU – Public Services / Utilities 

 
1.0 Recommendation 

THAT OCP Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-00015 to amend Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan 
Bylaw No. 10500 by amending Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use to change a portion of Lot 
3, Plan KAP80993, Section 31, TWP 27, ODYD, located at 1511 Tower Ranch Drive, from MRL – 
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) to S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential; PARK - Park and 
Open Space (public) to S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential; S2RESH – Single/Two Unit 
Residential- Hillside to MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density); S2RESH – Single/Two Unit 
Residential- Hillside to PARK – Major Park and Open Space (public); and PARK – Park and Open 
Space (public) to S2RESH – Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside;  from S2RES – Single/Two Unit 
Residential to PARK - Park and Open Space (public); from PARK – Park and Open Space (public) to 
S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential; from S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential to S2RESH - 
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside; from S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside to 
S2RESH - Single/Two Unit Residential,  in accordance with Map “A - #3” and Map “A - #4”  
attached to the Staff Report dated November 10, 2014, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT OCP Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-00015 to amend Kelowna 2030 – Official Community 
Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by amending Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use to change a portion of 

50



OCP14-0015 – Page 2 

 
 

Lot 4, Plan KAP80993, Section 31, TWP 27, ODYD, located at 2160 Tower Ranch Boulevard, from 
S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside to REC – Private Recreation (private); from REC – 
Private Recreation (private) to S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside; from S2RESH – 
Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside to PARK – Major Park and Open Space (public); from S2RESH 
– Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside to- PSU - Public Services / Utilities; from Private 
Recreation (private) to- PSU - Public Services / Utilities; in accordance with Map “A - #1” and 
Map “A - #2”  attached to the Staff Report dated November 10, 2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT OCP Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-00015 to amend Kelowna 2030 – Official Community 
Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by amending Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use to change a portion of 
Lot 5 KAP80993, Section 31, TWP 27, ODYD, located at 1501 Tower Ranch Drive, from PARK - 
Major Park and Open Space (public) to S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside; and from 
PARK - Major Park and Open Space (public) to S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential, in accordance 
with Map “A - #4” attached to the Staff Report dated November 10, 2014, be considered by 
Council; 

AND THAT OCP Bylaw Amendment No. OCP14-00015 to amend Kelowna 2030 – Official Community 
Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by amending Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use to change a portion of 
part of Tower Ranch Drive, located south of 1511 Tower Ranch Drive, being approximately 520 
m2, from Public Service Utilities (PSU) to Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside (S2RESH); and 
from Resource Protection Area (REP) to Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside (S2RESH), in 
accordance with Map “A - #5” attached to the Staff Report dated November 10, 2014, be 
considered by Council; 

AND THAT Council considers the public process outlined in the Staff Report dated November 10, 
2014 to be appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act; 

AND THAT the OCP Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing; 

AND FURTHER THAT Council direct staff to provide notice to owners of the subject properties, 
and owners of the immediately adjacent properties designated S2RES – Single/Two Unit 
Residential, A-1 Agriculture 1 and CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Course, as identified on 
Map “A”. 

2.0 Purpose  

To amend Map 4.1 – Generalized Future Land Use in the 2030 Official Community Plan for a 
portion of the Tower Ranch Development. 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment  

The Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment department have been working with the applicant to 
avoid and mitigate impacts to the natural environment and hazardous condition areas. Of note 
with respect to the OCP Amendment are two areas: 

 Proposed property transfers and OCP Amendments to divide the Tower Ranch Lot 3 
property from Tower Ranch Mountain Park along the centre line of Industry Brook; and 

 The proposed OCP amendment from S2RESH – Single / Two Unit Residential to PARK – 
Major Park and Open Space (Public) along the southwest portion of Lot 3 along Industry 
Brook, including a knoll of natural bluebunch wheatgrass / Idaho fescue grassland as well 
as an aspen copse along Industry Brook. 

51



OCP14-0015 – Page 3 

 
 

The applicant will be required to acquire a Natural Environment / Hazardous Conditions 
Development Permit at each phase of development for the area. A No-Build / No-Disturb 
Restrictive Covenant will be required prior to subdivision for natural and hazardous condition 
areas. 

The existing Official Community Plan land use designations were prepared as a response to 
conceptual planning conducted by a previous owner and developer. The applicant has brought 
forth a revised concept for 1511 Tower Ranch Drive and 2160 Tower Ranch Boulevard. Staff have 
worked with the applicant to accommodate the new concept plan as well as achieve objectives 
of the Official Community Plan, including: 

 Public space 

 Retention of natural areas 

 Linear Parks  

 Pedestrian linkages 

Staff notes that the amendment adjusts the future land use along the boundary of the City owned 
Tower Ranch Mountain Park to align with the centre line of Industry Brook. To this end, the lands 
to the south of Industry Brook are proposed to be amended to PARK – Major Park and Open Space 
(public), while the lands to the north of Industry Brook are proposed to be designated as to 
S2RESH – Single/Two Unit Residential – Hillside, and S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residential. Staff 
notes that these are minor adjustments to the PARK designation, and are proposed as the centre 
line of the creek is a logical the boundary between of the land uses. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

At the time of current OCP (approved in May 2011), the subject properties were owned by a 
previous developer. The configuration of future land use designations was designed in accordance 
with their concept plan. 

In 2012, Tower Ranch Lots 3, 4 and 6 were purchased by Parksbridge Lifestyle Communities Inc. 
(Parksbridge). Parksbridge develop communities based on a life lease concept, whereby the 
owner developer maintains ownership and management through the life of the development. The 
future land use was planned by a previous developer, and Parksbridge has an interest in 
amending the configuration of the future land uses to better suit their concept and target 
market. The proposed OCP Amendment has been designed in accordance with their concept plan, 
as well as geotechnical and environmental assessments. 

The Agricultural Land Commission allowed the golf course and associated development within 
Tower Ranch through a number of resolutions, the most recent of which was Resolution 
#498/2006. 

4.2 Project Description 

The amendment relocates an area of MRL – Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) from the north 
of Lot 3 to the centre of Lot 3.   In addition, the amendment includes changing an area of S2RESH 
– Single / Two Unit Residential – Hillside to PSU – Public Services / Utilities, in order to 
accommodate an existing Black Mountain Irrigation District (BMID) reservoir.  

It also includes moving a single area of PARK – Major Park and Open Space (PARK) from Lot 3 to 
two smaller areas of PARK on Lot 4. In addition, a portion of riparian area along Industry Brook 

52



OCP14-0015 – Page 4 

 
 

has been designated PARK, which includes an aspen grove, as well as knoll of intact indigenous 
grassland and a significant veteran ponderosa pine. 

Staff have worked with the applicant to relocate the PARK – Major Park and Open Space areas for 
the development.  

See Map A, attached. 

4.3 Site Context 

The site is located on the upper McCurdy Bench in the Rutland Sector. Agricultural properties 
within the Regional District of the Central Okanagan (RDCO) lie to the east of Lot 4. The Tower 
Ranch Golf Course lies in between Lots 3 and 4 and to the west of Lot 3 and the north of Lot 6. 
The Clubhouse property is a strata lot to which Parksbridge is a part of, and lies in between Lots 
3 and Lot 6. 

Tower Ranch Mountain Park lies to the south of Lot 3. Residential properties are further to the 
west and line Tower Ranch Boulevard and Split Rail Place, and more residences are being 
developed to the north of Tower Ranch Boulevard. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Course / 
CD6 LP - Comprehensive Residential Golf Course  
(Liquor Primary) 

Golf Course / Clubhouse 

East CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Course Golf Course 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 / P3 – Park & Open Space 
Rural Residential / Park / Hydro 
Transfer Station 

West CD6 – Comprehensive Residential Golf Course Golf Course 

 

  

53



OCP14-0015 – Page 5 

 
 

Map 1. Tower Ranch Subject Area 

 
 
  

Lot 3  

Lot 4 

Golf 

Course 

Lot 6 

Golf 

Course 

Golf 

Course 

Golf 

Course 

Tower Ranch 

Mountain Park 

54



OCP14-0015 – Page 6 

 
 

Map 2. Tower Ranch – Current Future Land Use 

 
 
  

55



OCP14-0015 – Page 7 

 
 

5.0 Public Notification 

The applicant has undertaken public notification / consultation. This has included delivering a 
letter, including a map of the proposed OCP Amendments to the residents and property owners 
along Tower Ranch Boulevard and Split Rail Place. (See attached letter, map and notification 
area). 

6.0 Current Development Policies 

6.1 Kelowna OCP 2030 Bylaw 10500  

Development Process 

Steep Slopes.1 Prohibit development on steep slopes (+30% or greater for a minimum distance of 
10 metres) except where provided for in ASPs adopted or subdivisions approved prior to adoption 
of OCP Bylaw 10500. 
 
Cluster Housing.2  Require new residential development to be in the form of cluster housing on / 
or near environmentally sensitive areas and areas of steeper slopes to lessen site disturbance and 
environmental impact on those areas identified on the Future Land Use Map 4.1 as single-two 
unit residential hillside. Steeply sloped areas should be retained as natural open space, public 
or private. The intent of the clustering would be to preserve features identified through the 
Development Permit process that otherwise might be developed and to maximize open space in 
order to: 

a. Protect environmentally sensitive areas of a development site and preserve them on a 
permanent basis utilizing the most appropriate tools available; 

b. Facilitate creative and flexible site design that is sensitive to the land’s natural features 
and adaptive to the natural topography; 

c. Decrease or minimize non-point source (i.e. asphalt roofs, driveways and parking) 
pollution impacts by reducing the amount of impervious surfaces in site development; 

d. Promote overall cost savings on infrastructure installation and maintenance; and 
e. Provide opportunities for social interaction, walking and hiking in open space areas. 
 

Ground-Oriented Housing.3  Encourage all multiple-unit residential buildings in neighbourhoods 
with schools and parks to contain ground-oriented units with 2 or more bedrooms so as to provide 
a family housing choice within the multi-unit rental or ownership markets.  
 
Pedestrian Connectivity.4   Improve the permeability of strata developments by ensuring that 
active transportation connections are facilitated where possible. 
 
Design for People and Nature.5 Structure new neighbourhoods around parks, pedestrian and bike 
routes, open spaces, and environmental areas, rather than around roadways and cars. 

7.0    Legal / Statutory Authority 

Local Government Act Part 26: Division 2 – Official Community Plans, Sections 875-882 

8.0 Legal / Statutory Procedural Requirements 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
3 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
4 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
5 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

56



OCP14-0015 – Page 8 

 
 

Local Government Act Section 882(3) specifies that after First Reading (and prior to Public 
Hearing) of an OCP bylaw the local government must, in sequence, consider the plan in 
conjunction with its financial plan and waste management plan applicable. The local government 
must also refer the plan to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) for comment if the plan 
applies to land in an agricultural land reserve established under the Agricultural Land Commission 
Act. The proposed amendment affects lands under the Resolution # 498/2006. 
 
Local Government Act Section 879(1) specifies that a local government must, during the 
development, repeal or amendment of an OCP, provide one or more opportunities it considers 
appropriate for consultation with persons, organizations, and authorities it considers will be 
affected. This consultation is in addition to the required Public Hearing. 

The Local Government Act Section 879(1) requirement for consultation will be addressed through 
a letter mail-out to all property owners within the affected area (see Map “A”) notifying of the 
proposed change in designation, and with contact information for the File Manager to field any 
inquiries and comments. This will be done in accordance with Council Policy #367 – Public 
Notification & Consultation for Development Applications. 

9.0 Technical Comments  

The OCP amendment was circulated to Building & Permitting, Development Engineering Branch, 
Infrastructure Planning – Parks & Public Spaces, the Black Mountain Irrigation District, and Policy 
& Planning. The responses received are below. 

9.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comments. 

9.2 Development Engineering Department 

This application has no requirements, and does not trigger any off-site upgrades. 

9.3 Infrastructure Planning – Parks & Public Spaces 

Infrastructure Planning – Parks & Public Spaces, have worked with the applicant to achieve the 
relocation of the designated PARK space from Lot 3 to two locations on Lot 4 (see Map ‘A’) as 
well as add a portion of PARK along the Industry Brook riparian area, also capturing a grassland 
knoll. 

9.4 Irrigation District 

No comments received. 

9.5 Policy & Planning 

There are no significant departures from the current FLU. Therefore, this application is 
consistent with the intent of the current OCP. 

10.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received:     January 16, 2014 

Revised OCP Amendment Map (Rev. 1) Received:    September 9, 2014 

57



OCP14-0015 – Page 9 

 
 

Application Complete:      September 9, 2014 

Revised OCP Amendment Map (Rev. 2) Received:    September 24, 2014 

Revised OCP Amendment Map (Rev. 2) Circulation Complete:  October 13, 2014 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Todd Cashin, Manager, Land Use Management 
 

Attachments:  

Map “A” OCP Amendment  

Public Notification Letter 

Public Notification OCP Map 

Public Notification Distribution Area 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 10/27/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: 
OCP14-0011 

Z14-0026 
Owner: 

561655 BC LTD., INC. NO. 
BC0561655  

Address: 1280 Glenmore Dr Applicant: Randy Therrien 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: MRL – Multiple Unit Residential, Low-Density  

Proposed OCP Designation S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM2 – Low Density Row Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan amendment application No. OCP14-0011 to amend the City of 
Kelowna Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by changing the OCP classification of a portion 
of Lot 1, Section 29, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 29608, located on 1280 Glenmore Drive, Kelowna, 
BC from the MRL – Multiple Residential Low Density designation to the S2RES – Single / Two Unit 
Residential designation as shown on Map “A” attached to the report from Urban Planning 
Department dated October 27th 2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0026 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of a portion of Lot 1, Section 29, Township 26, ODYD, 
Plan 29608, located on 1280 Glenmore Drive, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone 
to the RM2 – Low Density Row Housing zone as shown on Map “B” attached to the report from 
Urban Planning Department dated October 27th 2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be subsequent to the following: 

1. Requirements of Development Engineering Branch being completed to their 
satisfaction;  

2. Subdivision delineating the five RM2 lots; 

3. Dedicate a lane right-of-way and install a lane access to Mountainview Street; 

75



Z14-0026 – Page 2 

 
4. A Party Wall Agreement is registered on title;  

5. AND FURTHER THAT a Section 219 Building Use covenant be registered on each of the 
nine parcels restricting each parcel to one dwelling unit in order to prevent any 
additional dwelling units to be developed within each townhome. 

2.0 Purpose  

To rezone the portion of the subject property facing Glenmore Drive to RM2 – Low Density Row 
Housing in order to develop a freehold five unit townhouse and keep the remainder of the 
subject property facing Mountainview Street as RU1 – Large Lot Housing. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Staff support the proposed rezoning to allow a freehold five unit townhouse development on the 
subject property in conjunction with two single family dwellings. Although inconsistent with the 
Official Community Plan, this proposal was the compromised result of two public hearings as 
directed by Council. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

At the Council meeting on October 22nd 2014 Council directed Staff and the applicant in regards 
to what form of development would be acceptable in this area which was a five unit townhouse 
facing Glenmore Drive and two single family dwellings with a lane connecting through to 
Mountainview street. The OCP amendment is necessary as single family development does not fit 
the MRL designation therefore requiring a less dense land use designation on the portion of the 
lot facing Mountainview Street.  

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached 
Schedule ‘A’.  

4.2 Project Description 

The subject property currently contains one single detached dwelling that will be demolished and 
is proposed to be replaced with a five unit townhouse development on the eastern portion of the 
subject property. The western portion of the subject property is proposed to be developed 
according to the RU1 zone which will only permit two single family dwellings once the lane is 
provided. 

4.3 Site Context 

The site area is approximately 1,942 m2 and is located within a well established residential 
neighbourhood. The Kelowna Golf and Country Club is located to the east directly across 
Glenmore Drive. The subject property is designated MRL (Multiple Residential – Low Density) and 
the lot is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. Specifically, the adjacent land uses are as 
follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

Residential 

East 
P3LP – Parks and Open Space (Liquor 
Primary) 

Golf Course 

South RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

West RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

76



Z14-0026 – Page 3 

 
Subject Property Map: 1280 Glenmore Drive 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM2 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
 Principal Bldg Principal Bldg 

Height 
9.5 m (2.5 storeys) To the midpoint 

of the roof 
9.5 m (2.5 stories) to the Peak 

Front Yard 4.5 m > 4.5 m 

Side Yard  
4.0 m 

0.0 m with party wall agreement 
4.0 m 

0.0 m with party wall agreement 

Flanking Side Yard n/a  n/a 

Rear Yard 
6.0 m for 1 or 1 ½ storeys 
7.5 m for 2 or 2 ½ storeys 

7.5 m 

Site coverage of buildings  50 % 35.9 % 

Site coverage of 
buildings, driveways & 

parking 
55 % 46.8 % 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 

Requirements 
2 / dwelling unit = 10 parking stalls 10 

Private Open Space 25 m2 / dwelling unit Greater than 25 m2  / dwelling unit 

 

77



Z14-0026 – Page 4 

 
5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications.  

 The original set of drawings clearly showed this as a 4 plex, the current basement floor 
plan is easily converted to the original 4 plex arrangement with little effort. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached 

6.3 Fire Department 

 No concerns with the concept but a lane cannot be considered as access for the fire 
department. There appears to be no access from the front on Glenmore. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: June 5th 2014 
Date of Public consultation: July 7th 2014 
Date of First Public Hearing: Sept 26th 2014 
Date of Second Public Hearing: Oct 22nd 2014 
  

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

78



Z14-0026 – Page 5 

 
Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner   
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:    Doug Gilchrist, Community Planning ＆ Real Estate Div. Dir. 

Attachments:  

Map “A” 
Map “B” 
Site Plan / Landscape Plan 
Colour Board 
Conceptual Elevations 
Development Engineering Comments 
 
 
 

  

79



Z14-0026 – Page 6 

 

 

Amend OCP of a portion of the subject 
property from MRL – Multiple Unit Residential 
(Low Density) to S2RES – Single / Two Unit 
Residential 

MAP “A” PROPOSED OCP AMENDMENT 
File # OCP14-0011 

MRL to S2RES  

80



Z14-0026 – Page 7 

 

 

Portion of the subject property to 

remain as RU1 Large Lot Housing 

RU1 to remain 

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: November 10, 2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning and Real Estate (LB) 

Application: OCP12-0013/Z12-0054 Owner: 
John Ross Marrington 

Alana Vera Marrington 

Address: 551 Glenwood Avenue Applicant: 
Garry Tomporowski Architect 
Ltd. 

Subject: OCP Amendment & Rezoning Application, Extension Request 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: HD2 – Hospital and Health Support Services 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT in accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 10540, the deadline for 
the adoption of Official Community Plan Amending Bylaw No. 10772 and Zone Amending Bylaw 
No. 10773, for Lot 2, D.L. 14, ODYD, Plan 1251 located on 551 Glenwood Avenue, Kelowna, BC, 
be extended from November 13, 2014 to November 13, 2015; 
 
AND THAT Council direct staff not to accept any further extension requests. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a final extension to facilitate the rezoning of the subject property from the RU6 – 
Two Dwelling Housing zone to the HD2 – Hospital and Health Support Services zone to allow the 
applicant one more year to address the technical implications of this project, including 
consolidating the subject property with 2149, 2159, 2169, 2179 & 2189 Pandosy Street, relocating 
the lane to the east side of the subject property, and entering into a Servicing Agreement for the 
offsite upgrades associated with the proposed development. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Section 2.12.1 of Procedure Bylaw No. 10540 states that: 

In the event that an application made pursuant to this bylaw is one (1) year old or older and has 
been inactive for a period of six (6) months or greater: 
 

104



OCP12-0013 / Z12-0054 – Page 2 

 
 

a) The application will be deemed to be abandoned and the applicant will be notified in writing 
that the file will be closed; 

b) Any bylaw that has not received final adoption will be of no force and effect; 

c) In the case of an amendment application, the City Clerk will place on the agenda of a meeting 
of Council a motion to rescind all readings of the bylaw associated with that Amendment 
application. 
 
Section 2.12.2 of the Procedure Bylaw makes provision that upon written request by the 
applicant prior to the lapse of the application, Council may extend the deadline for a period of 
twelve (12) months by passing a resolution to that affect. 
  
By-Laws No. 10772 & 10773 received second and third readings on November 13, 2012 after the 
Public Hearing held on the same date, and a twelve (12) month extension until November 13, 
2014 was granted on December 2, 2013. The applicant wishes to have this application remain 
open for an additional twelve (12) months to complete the conditions of adoption. The applicant 
recently submitted a Subdivision application for the lot consolidation and road dedication, which 
is currently under review. Council adopted the road closure for the lane adjacent to the subject 
property on October 20, 2014, pending final approval by Subdivision. Given the recent activity on 
the application, a final extension to November 13, 2015 is supported. 

Report prepared by: 

     
Laura Bentley, Planner 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Supervisor, Urban Planning 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, Divisional Director, Community Planning  
     and Real Estate 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 

105



106



Report to Council 
 

 
 

Date: 

 
October 24, 2014 

File: 
 

0505-50 

To: City Manager 

From: 
 

Jim Paterson, Executive Director of Business Development 
 

Subject: Canyon Creek Partnering Agreement in accordance with Section 21 of the 
Community Charter – 5050 McCulloch Road – Canyon Creek Owners 
 
 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 
THAT Council authorizes the City to enter into a Partnering Agreement with Seadrift Properties Ltd., Dlanor 
Developments Ltd., Otto Babichuk, Jomada Ventures Corp., Newport Investments Ltd., 244584 Alberta Ltd., 
537584 Alberta Inc., Cher-Ken Holdings Ltd., MJC Development Corporation, Joric Holdings Ltd. and 407904 
BC Ltd. in the form attached to the report of the Executive Director of Business Development, dated 
October 24, 2014; 
 
AND THAT in accordance with Section 21 of the Community Charter, the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized 
to execute the Partnering Agreement; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the costs associated with the front ending of the proposed works be referred to the 
2015 Capital Budget process. 
 
 
Purpose: 
 
To obtain Council support for the Canyon Creek Partnering Agreement as herein attached. 
 
 
Background: 
 
The approximate 74 ha (183 acre) Canyon Creek property is located on McCulloch Road at the south-easterly 
boundary of the city limits, east of Gallagher’s Canyon Golf Resort, in the South East Kelowna sector of the 
city as shown outlined below. 
 

107



City Manager - 2 - October 24, 2014 
Re:  Z04-0020 
 

 

 
 
 
In 2010, Council authorized a Partnering Agreement with the Owners of the proposed Canyon Creek 
development.  The city proceeded with McCulloch Road improvements, the cost of which including interest 
was secured through a mortgage on the Canyon Creek property.  In March of 2014, full payment in the 
amount of $1,626,768.50 was received by the City from the Owners thereby fulfilling the requirements of 
the first Partnering Agreement. 
 
As a part of the approval for the Canyon Creek development, the developer is required, among other 
matters, to replace the existing McCulloch Road Bridge (over KLO Creek) and upgrade the approach works.  
This bridge replacement and road upgrade will not only benefit the development, but will also provide an 
improved and safer access for citizens and tourists along McCulloch Road travelling to the Myra Canyon 
trestles. 
 
While acknowledging that they remain firmly committed to the Canyon Creek development, the Owners are 
not in a position to proceed with the development or to initiate the capital works at this time. Staff are, 
however, recommending that these bridge works be completed as soon as possible. 
 
In order to commence these bridge improvements in advance of the development, the Owners and staff 
have prepared a second ‘Partnering Agreement’ which allows the city to proceed with front ending of the 
costs of the bridge works, while the Owners provide the repayment security through an alternate means 
other than bonding or a letter of credit. 
  

108



City Manager - 3 - October 24, 2014 
Re:  Z04-0020 
 

 
McCulloch Road Bridge looking NW 

 
 

McCulloch Road looking SE of Bridge 

 
 
Staff and the Owners have therefore initiated the attached Partnering Agreement pursuant to Section 21 of 
the Community Charter. Through a Partnering Agreement (by which a service is provided on behalf of a 
municipality), the city may provide assistance to a business which will allow this important bridge to be 
replaced when required as opposed to when the developer is ready to proceed. 
 
The Partnering Agreement provides the city with the security normally provided through bonding by the 
granting to the city of a first mortgage against the subject property.  There is mutual benefit associated 
with the city execution of the Partnering Agreement as follows:  
 
Benefits to Canyon Creek: 
 More of the development’s servicing requirements are completed with no immediate capital outlay 
 Improved ability to sell the development/lots 
 Infrastructure requirements may be more costly in the future 

 
Benefits to City: 
 Bridge is reaching its functional life 
 Bridge and approach are too narrow for existing traffic 
 Bridge has weight restrictions 
 Route to Myra Canyon Trestles will be made much safer 
 Design of new bridge accommodates cyclists 
 City receives full repayment and interest for the construction and project management work 

109



City Manager - 4 - October 24, 2014 
Re:  Z04-0020 
 

 
As a requirement of the Partnering Agreement, the Owners shall, within thirty (30) days of the approval of 
this Agreement, grant to the city a mortgage valued at $900,000, to be registered as a first financial charge 
against the title of the lands securing the payment to the city inclusive of: 

 
a. the reimbursement of costs associated with the replacement of the McCulloch Road Bridge as defined 

within the Agreement (estimated by Ecora Engineering Consultant at $742,500 including 
contingency); 

b. the City Development Engineering Fee estimated at $21,000; and 
c. interest payable on a) and b) above based upon a four (4) year term at four percent (4%) interest 

(estimated at $122,160). 
 
In exchange, the Partnering Agreement allows the Owners to defer the repayment of the cost of the bridge 
upgrade until the earlier of: 
 
a. that date upon which the Owners commence construction of the development, or 
b. until June 30, 2019 
 
at which time the Owners must satisfy their financial obligation to the city. 
 
Staff have confirmed that the mortgage on the subject lands provides ample security to the city for the 
reimbursement of the cost of the bridge replacement.  The Owners also have a ‘no build’ covenant under 
section 219 of the Land Title Act registered upon their lands until all servicing requirements of the 
Preliminary Layout Review (PLR) letters have been met to the satisfaction of the city’s subdivision approving 
officer.  As a part of this agreement, staff have also appended copies of the PLR letters to the Partnering 
Agreement for ease of administration. 
 
Given the civic objectives that are being met as a result of the bridge replacement and approach works, 
staff are recommending support for the execution of the Partnering Agreement. 
 
Subject to Council authorization and the Owner achieving the requirements of the Partnering Agreement 
within the stated thirty (30) day timeframe, staff plan to tender and award the McCulloch Road Bridge 
replacement and approach works in the spring of 2015 in order to improve the use and the safety of 
McCulloch Road accessing the Myra Canyon trestles.  Staff have included the budget for the proposed works 
within the 2015 Capital Budget for Council consideration. 
 
Internal Circulation: 

John Vos, Corporate Business Ventures Director 
Alan Newcombe, Infrastructure Division Director 
Steve Muenz, Manager Development Engineering  

Shelley Gambacort, Subdivision, Agriculture ＆ Environment Director 

Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 

Section 21 of the Community Charter 
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 

Pursuant to Section 21 of the Community Charter, notice to provide assistance was published in the 
Cap News on October 31 and November 7, 2014. 

 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 

Proposed for 2015 Capital Budget 
 

110



City Manager - 5 - October 24, 2014 
Re:  Z04-0020 
 

 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 

Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Community & Media Relations Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 

 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
J. Paterson 
Executive Director of Business Development 
 
 
Approved for Inclusion   Paul Macklem, Deputy City Manager 
 
 
cc: Genelle Davidson, Financial Services Director 

 Doug Gilchrist, Community Planning ＆ Real Estate Division Director 

 
 
Key Messages:   

 This is the 2nd proposed Partnering Agreement with the Canyon Creek Ownership group. 

 The first Partnering Agreement was concluded in the spring of 2014 with the City receiving full 
payment of approximately $1.627 M from Canyon Creek to reimburse the City for expropriated lands 
and McCulloch Road improvements including interest. 

 This Agreement allows the city to proceed with front ending of the costs of the bridge replacement, 
while the Owners provide the repayment security through a mortgage on their property. 

 The bridge replacement will offer improved safety and access to the Myra Canyons Trestles. 
 

 
File Chronology: 

Application Received:  March 15, 2004 
APC:  April 27, 2004 
Rezoning Report forwarded to Council not supporting rezoning application:  September 27, 2004 
Council supported rezoning and gave 1st Reading:  October 4, 2004 
Public Hearing:  November 2, 2004 
2nd & 3rd Reading:  November 2, 2004 
Rezoning Application on hold:  February 3, 2005 (pending servicing conditions being met) 
Application did not proceed as applicant had file on hold pending resolution of the financial 
obligations of servicing requirements. 
Partnering Agreement to address the Servicing Requirements for the rezoning application, as 
executed by applicant, forwarded to our office from City Solicitor:  July 7, 2010 
Z04-0020 Partnering Agreement Canyon Creek 2010 Council Report.docx 

 
  

111



City Manager - 6 - October 24, 2014 
Re:  Z04-0020 
 

 
APPENDIX A PARTNERING AGREEMENT 
 
 
OWNERS: 
 

 
Otto Babichuk 
c/o 11523 – 100 Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5K 0J8 
 
Jomada Ventures Corp. 
592 KLO Road 
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 7S2 
 
Newport Investments Ltd. 
5503 – 174 Street 
Edmonton, AB  T6M 1E2 
 
244584 Alberta Ltd. 
312 Wolf Ridge Pt. NW 
Edmonton, AB  T5T 5R7 
 
537584 Alberta Inc. 
45 Glenmeadow Crescent 
St. Albert, AB  T8N 3A2 
 
Cher-Ken Holdings Ltd. 
Box 69, RR #4 
Edmonton, AB  T5E 5S7

 
MJC Development Corporation 
19 Lancaster Crescent 
St. Albert, AB  T8N 2N9 
 
Joric Holdings Ltd. 
Box 8 Site 220, RR#2 
St. Albert, AB  T5T 5R7 
 
Seadrift Properties Ltd. 
803 Wheeler Road West 
Edmonton, AB  T6M 2E5 
 
Dlanor Developments Ltd. 
17515 – 106A Avenue 
Edmonton, AB  T5S 1M7 
 
407904 BC Ltd. 
799 Young Road 
Kelowna, BC  V1W 2K7 

112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE ‘B’ 
 

ECORA ENGINEERING LTD. JULY 30, 2014 LETTER 

141



July 30, 2014 Ecora 
City of Kelowna 

1435 Water St. 

Kelowna, BC V1Y-

1J4 
 

 
Attn: Mr. Steve Muenz, P.Eng 

Dear Sir, 

Re: KLO Creek Bridge Replacement 
 

 
Further to your request, we are pleased to submit our proposal for engineering services 

for the above referenced project. The current bridge is nearing the end of its lifespan 

and needs replacing.  As you are aware, the bridge design has already been completed 

by Ecora and approved by the City as part of the Canyon Creek Development.  The 

work we propose to carry out is as follows: 

 
 
 

A. Design & Approvals 

1. Design of Road Approaches - The west side of McCulloch Road was 

reconstructed several years ago.  A short section of the west approach 

to the existing bridge will have to be removed and reconstructed to 

accommodate the new bridge.  The new bridge will be approximately 

1.5 m higher than the existing bridge deck.  In addition, the east 

approach will have to be designed to accommodate the future road in 

such a manner so to easily tie into future McCulloch Road 

reconstruction. 

 
Our Fee: $4,760.00 

 

 
2. Environmental Approval - I have talked to Corey Davis with regards to 

the environmental approvals.  The DP has been issued, the restoration 

plan has been completed by Outland Design and Terrestrial 

Environment report has been prepared.  We understand that the 

Section 9 approval with the MOE may have lapsed.  We will make a 

new application to the MOE for a Section 9 notification as well with the 

DFO of the project in compliance with current laws. 
 

 
Our Fee: $1,040.00 

 
579  Lawrence Aven ue, l<e lown£1,  RC, Vl Y 6 1 8    ·1 e i 250.Li69 .9757 Fax 2.50.469  9757    WINW .ecora.ca 

142



Ecoi cl 
 

 

 
 

B. Construction Period Services 
 

 
1. Tender 

e We will prepare tender documents based on MMCD - Platinum 

edition 

e Call tender for up to 3 qualified contractors 

o Respond to contractors questions during tender period 

a  Review tenders and provide a spreadsheet summary and 

comparison for unit prices and overall costs 

o Prepare contract documents for signing by both parties 

• Provide 3 sets of Issued for Construction Designs, as well as 1 

digital set 

" Award the contact and gather Worksafe BC Clearance letter and 

Insurance 

 
 
 

Our Fee: $2,220.00 
 
 
 

2. Field Reviews 

Field Review Services are dependent on the schedule of construction 

and quality of work by the contractor.  We have included an estimated 

amount for inspections based on previous jobs of similar scope and 

nature.  We propose to base our fees on actual time and charge out 

rate as per the attached schedule of rates.  We have based our 

inspections on a eight (8) week construction schedule. 

 

e Pre-Construction  Meeting $530.00 

o Construction Inspections (estimated) $18,100.00 

o Material & Compaction testing (allowance) $5,040 .00 

o Environmental  Monitoring $7,500.00 

o Deficiency Review with Contractor $210 .00 

a Final Inspection with City, Provide deficiency  

lisC and Provide Certificate of Bylaw Compliance $475.00 

 

Our Fee: $31,855 .00 
 
 
 

5 7(J L<1 wre nee /\vem1e, 1\e IOVv'lla, 13C, V 1Y l)l 15     I e I iSO.!J Ci J.!J 757 F<;x 2 SD.!J 6Y 97':l7   www .r c o' a .ca 

143



Ecora 
 

 

 
 

3. Post Construction Services 

We will prepare as-constructed drawings from topographical survey 

carried out by Ecora. 
 

 
o As constructed drawings to City 

• Preparation of Engineers Certification, test results, and 

submission of required schedules to City of Kelowna 

 
Our Fee: $2,840.00 

 
 
 

C. Contract & Project Management 
 

 
Construction services will commence upon contract award to the successful contractor . 

A meeting will be set up to include all project members to discuss schedule and 

process.  Ecora will prepare a list to describe responsibilities of all parties involved and 

clearly define project roles.  Once construction starts the tasks that will be included in 

Construction & Project management will include: 
 

 
1. Attend Pre-construction meeting with COK and Contractor to confirm 

contact information , permit requirements, traffic and communication 

plan, scope of work, optimum construction staging and the 

responsibilities of all parties involved; 

2. Consult with, and make recommendations to the COK during 

construction; 

3. Review and approve all shop drawings; 

4. Monitoring to ensure specified materials and products are used for 

construction and review proposed alternates by contractor for 

suitability. (DWK will be notified if a proposed alternative material or 

product is suitable for construction); 

5. Provide to the DWK a monthly budget update and explanations; 

6. Provide and justify cost estimates for an additional or deletions; 

7. Prepare, certify and promptly submit all progress payment to 

contractor; 

8. Arrange , attend, record and distribute meeting minutes for all weekly 

meetings; 
 

 
 
 

'.>7 9 I awren ce Avenue,  J (e low tld. LlC, V JY G l 8    Tel 2'.>0.464 .975/  rax 25 0.t169 tJ7'1/     www  e cor<l.! a 

144



Ecora 

5 79 l aw 1 ence /we ntJP , l<ekJWJJa, ur :, V.l Y b l8 ·1 el 2'.10 11 b9.9757 Fax 7 1U.tl6LJ 97S 7   www.ecora .c ,1 

 

 

9. Provide to the COK a Substantial Completion Certificate and a Total 

Performance Certificate to permit the Release of Holdback; 

10.Provide final measurements and costs within 30 days of Substantial 

Completion; 

Our Fee: $4,680.00 
 

 
 

FEE SUMMARY 

 
 

 
A. 

Design & Approach 

1.Design of Road Approach 

2.Environmental  Approval 

 

 
$4,760.00 

$1,040.00 

 
 
B. 

Construction Period Services 

1.Tender 

2. Field Reviews 

3. Post Construction Services 

 

 
$2,220.00 

$31,855.00 

$2,840.00 

C. 
 

Contract & Project Management 
 

$4,680.00 

 
 

 
TOTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

 
$47,395.00 

 

 
 

Our Terms for Payment is Net 30 Days 
 
 

This proposal includes ongoing liaison with the owner involved throughout the course of 

the project and coordination design with other consultants involved.  All drawings and 

schedules submitted to governing authorities will be signed and sealed by a 

professional engineer. 

 

Not included in the foregoing proposal are the following: 

 
ca Applicable    taxes 

o Disbursements such as plotted prints, blueprints, mileage, etc. 

o Legal Survey 

, Construction layout survey (to be included in contractors bid) 

9 Geotechnical  Report 

145



7lJ  t awre IILe rwe 11lle, 1<e low 11a, BC, V .1 Y 6 1.8      I e l !SCJ.Ii69 .9 7I  f  ax  2SO.Ii ot.l  CJ /'.J 1    www.ec 01 a  c;1 

 

 

 

 
 

If revisions or change of scope for the project are requested by either the owner or 

others, after the works have been approved, or if you request additional work to that 

detailed herein, a budget will be provided prior to proceeding with the work based on 

our hourly rates as outlined below. 

 
Hourly rates for any work not identified in the above proposal will be billed based on the 

following fee structure . 
 

 

Personnel Job Description Hourly Rate 

Mike Young, P. Eng. Senior Engineer $160.00 

Paige Smyth, AScT Sr. Engineering Technologist $105.00 

Joanne  Koepke Sr. Engineering Technologist $105.00 

Inspector Construction  Inspection $90.00 

CADD Support Computer Drafting Technician $85.00 

Clerical Clerical & Administrative Support 

Staff 

$50.00 

 

 
 

As requested we have established the construction of the Bridge replacement as 

follows: 

 
1. 

 

New Bridge Construction 
 

$375,000.00 

2. 
 

Site Works (Approaches, Temp. Bridge, etc) 
 

$300,000.00 

  

SUB-TOTAL 
 

$675,000.00 

  

Contingency 10% 
 

$67,500.00 

 
 

 
TOTAL BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 

 

 
$742,500.00 

146



5 79 La wr e nce Avenue, Ke lowl)a, 13C, v J y fiLS   le l  L50JI(1C} 975 7 lax 250.1169  )7 r) 7   WW'.\1 ('(()f<i.( (l 

 

 

 

E 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.  Please do not hesitate to contact 

our office if you have any questions or require any clarifications.  We look forward to 

your favorable response. 
 

 
Yours truly, 

 
 

ECORA ENGINEERING LTO. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Michael D. Yo 

MDY 

147



 

 

ArciMS Viewer Page  1 of2 
 

 
 

 
 

n)(.;e 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://kelintranetd/website/Utilities _map_viewer/MapFrame.cfm 8/20/2014 
148

http://kelintranetd/website/Utilities


Page 1 of 1 Map Output  

 

 

 
 

KLO Creek/McCulloch Bridge 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 
 

  City of Kelowna -Accuracy and corre 

 

 
 

275  Meters 

 

 
 

This mao is for qeneral information only. The City of Kelowna does not quar. ntee its accuracy . All information should be verified. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName   =Utilities_ArcMap_Vie... 8/20/2014 
149

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName


Map Output Page  1 of 1  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This map is for aeneral information onlv. The Citv of Kelowna does not its accuracv. All information should be verified . 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Utilities_ArcMap_  Vie... 8/20/2014 
150

http://kelintranetd/servlet/com.esri.esrimap.Esrimap?ServiceName=Utilities_ArcMap_


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ecora 

151



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE ‘C’ 
Land Title Application 

  

152



I 

FORM_B_V20 

 
LAND TITLE ACT 

FORM B (Section 225) 

 
 MORTGAGE- PART 1Province of British Columbia PAGE    1   OF   8  PAGES  

Your electronic signature is a representation that you are a subscriber as defined by the I 
Land Title Act, RSBC  1996 c.250, and that you have applied your electronic signature in 

accordance with Section  168.3, and a true copy, or a copy of that true copy, is in your 
possession. 

 

 
1. APPLICATION: (Name, address, phone number of applicant, applicant's solicitor or agent) 

Doak Shirreff LLP 

Barristers and Solicitors 

#200, 537 Leon Avenue 

Kelowna BC V1Y 2A9 
 
 

2. PARCEL IDENTIFIER AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LAND: 

[PID] [legal description} 

 

Phone: 250-763-4323 
File: 065-124248/vc 
LTO client no: 10565 

 
 
 
 
 

DeductLTSAFees?  Yes  It] 

028-452-160 LOT 1 SECTION 1 TOWNSHIP 26 ODYD PLAN EPP8620 

 
STC? YES  D 

 

 
3. BORROWER(S) (MORTGAGOR(S)): (including postal address(es) and postal code(s)) 

SEE SCHEDULE 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. LENDER(S) (MORTGAGEE(S)): (including occupation(s), postal address(es) and postal code(s)) 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

 

1435 WATER STREET 

KELOWNA 

CANADA 

 
 

BRITISH COLUMBIA 

V1Y 1J4 
 

5. PAYMENTPROVISIONS: 

(a) Principal Amount: (b) Interest Rate: (c) Interest Adjustment y M D 

$900,000.00 Four (4.0%) Per centum Date:   N/A 
 

(d) Interest Calculation Period: (e) Payment Dates: (f) First Payment 

Annually, not in advance N/A Date:     N/A 
 

(g) Amount of each periodic payment: (h) Interest Act (Canada) Statement. (i) Last Payment 

The equivalent rate of interest calculated Date: 
N/A half yearly not in advance 

 

 

119106  30 

is 4.0% per annum. I 
I 

G) Assignment of Rents which the (k) Place of payment: (1) Balance Due 

applicant wants registered ? 

YESD NO[{] 
IfYES, page and paragraph  number: 

 

Address in Item 4. 
Date: 

19 06  30 

 
 
 

- I  I  I   

153



y 
 

 
 

14 

M D 

 

(b) Filed Standard Mortgage Terms D D F Number: 

(c) Express Mortgage Terms D (annexed to this mortgage as Part 2) 

 

MORTGAGE-PART 1 PAGE   2  OF   8  PAGES   

6. MORTGAGE contains floating charge on land? 

YESO NO[{] 

7. MORTGAGE secures a current or running account? 

YESO NO[{] 

 

8. INTEREST MORTGAGED: 

Freehold It] 

Other (specify)  D 
 

9. MORTGAGE TERMS: 
 

Part 2 of this mortgage consists of (select one only): 

(a) Prescribed Standard Mortgage Terms   [{] 
 

 
 

A selection of(a) or (b) includes any additional or modified terms referred to in item 10 or in a schedule annexed to this mortgage. 

 
10. ADDITIONAL OR MODIFIED TERMS: 

 

SEE SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
11. PRIOR ENCUMBRANCES PERMITTED BY LENDER: 

 

Rights of Way 69737E, L39650, Statutory Rights of Way V38606, V82022 and KH9846, 

Covenants LB383942 and CA1846184 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12. EXECUTION(S): This mortgage charges the Borrower's interest in the land mortgaged as security for payment of all money due and 

performance of all obligations in accordance with the mortgage terms referred to in item 9 and the Borrower(s) and every other signatory agree(s) to be 

bound by, and acknowledge(s) receipt of a true copy of, those terms. 
 

Officer Signature(s) Execution  Date Borrower(s) Signature(s) 
 
 
 

OTTO BABICHUK, by his lawful 

Attorney, Ron Creswell 
 
 
 
 

OTTO BABICHUK, by his lawful 

Attorney, Robert Marshall 

(DF CA1779420) 
 

OFFICER CERTIFICATION: 

Your signature constitutes a representation that you are a solicitor, notary public or other person authorized by the Evidence Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c.124, 

to take affidavits for use in British Columbia and certifies the matters set out in Part 5 of the Land Title Act as they pertain to the execution of this 

instrument. 

154



FORM_D1_V20 

LAND TITLE ACT 

FORMD 

to take affidavits for use in British Columbia and certifies the matters set out in Part 5 of the Land Title Act as they pertain to the execution of this 

instrument. 

 

 

y M D 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I 
I 

 

 EXECUTIONS CONTINUED PAGE  3 of  8 pages   
 

Officer Signature(s) 
 

Execution Date 
 

Transferor I Borrower I Party Signature(s) 

 

JOMADA VENTURES CORP., 
by its authorized signatories: 

 

 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 
 
 

Robert Marshall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEWPORT INVESTMENTS LTD., 

by its authorized signatories: 
 

 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 
 
 

Robert Marshall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

244584 ALBERTA  LTD., 

by its authorized signatories: 
 

 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 
 

I Robert    Marshall 

I 
 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER CERTIFICATION: 

Your signature constitutes a representation that you are a solicitor, notary public or other person authorized by the Evidence Act, R.S .B.C. 1996, c.124, 

155



FORM_D1_V20 

LAND TITLE ACT 

FORMD 

instrument. 

 

 

y M D 

 

 EXECUTIONS CONTINUED PAGE 4 of  8 pages   
 

Officer Signature(s) 
 

Execution Date 
 

Transferor I Borrower I Party Signature(s) 

 

537584 ALBERTA  INC., 

by its authorized signatories: 
 

 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 
 
 

Robert Marshall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHER-KEN HOLDINGS LTD., 

by its authorized signatories: 
 
 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 
 
 

Robert Marshall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MJC DEVELOPMENT 

CORPORATION, 

by its authorized signatories: 
 

 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 

I    
I Robert   Marshall 

 

 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER CERTIFICATION: 

Your signature constitutes a representation that you are a solicitor, notary public or other person authorized by the Evidence Act, R.S.B.C . 1996, c.l24, 

to take affidavits for use in Dritish Columbia and certifies the matters set out in Part 5 of the Land Title Act as they pertain to the execution of this 

156



FORM_D1_V20 

LAND TITLE ACT 

FORMD 

to take affidavits for use in British Columbia and certifies the matters set out in Part 5 of the Land Title Act as they pertain to the execution of this 

instrument. 

 

 

y 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I 
I 

J\.1 D 

 

EXECUTIONS CO PAGE  5 of   8 pages   
 

Officer Signature(s) 
 

Execution Date 
 

Transferor I Borrower I Party Signature(s) 

 

JORIS HOLDINGS LTO., 

by its authorized signatories: 
 

 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 
 
 

Robert Marshall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SEADRIFT PROPERTIES LTD., 

by its authorized signatories: 
 

 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 
 
 

Robert Marshall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DLANOR DEVELOPMENTS  LTD., 

by its authorized signatories: 
 

 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 
 

I Robert    Marshall 
I 

 
 
 
 
 
 

OFF1CER  CERTIFICATION: 

Your signature constitutes a representation that you are a solicitor, notary public or other person authorized by the Evidence Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c.l24, 

157



to take affidavits for use in British Columbia and certifies the matters set out in Part 5 of the Land Title Act as they pertain to the execution of this 

instrument. 

FORM_D1_V20 

LAND TITLE ACT 
FORMD 

 EXECUTIONSCONT D PAGE 6 of  8 pages   

Transferor I Borrower I Party Signature(s) Officer Signature(s) Execution Date 

 

 

y 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I 
I 

M D 

I 

  

 

 

407904 B.C. LTD., 

by its authorized signatories: 
 

 
 

Ron Cresswell 
 
 
 
 

Robert Marshall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OFFICER CERTIFICATION: 

Your signature constitutes a representation that you are a solicitor, notary public or other person authorized by the Evidence Act, R.S.B.C. 1996, c.124, 

158



FORM_E_V20 
 

LAND TITLE ACf 

FORME 

 SCHEDULE PAGE   7  OF  8  PAGES 

ENTER THE REQUIRED INFORMATION  IN THE SAME ORDER  AS THE INFORMATION  MUST APPEAR  ON THE FREEHOLD TRANSFER FORM,  MORTGAGE FORM,  OR GENERAL 

INSTRUMENT FORM . 

 

 

 

3.  Borrowers: 

 
OTTO BABICHUK, Businessman, 
c/o 11523 - 1OOth Avenue 

Edmonton, AB T5K OJ8 

 
JOMADA VENTURES CORP. (Inc. No. A58332) 

592 KLO Road 

Kelowna, BC V1Y 7S2 

 
NEWPORT INVESTMENTS LTD. (Inc. No. 203585732) 

5503 - 174 Street 

Edmonton, AB T6M 1E3 

 
244584 ALBERTA LTD. (Inc. No. 202445847) 
312 Wolf Ridge Point NW 

Edmonton, AB T5T 5R7 

 
537584 ALBERTA INC. (Inc. No. 205375843) 

45 Glenmeadow Crescent 

St. Albert, AB T8N 5S7 

 
CHER-KEN HOLDINGS LTD. (Inc. No. 20340721) 

Box 69 RR#4 

Edmonton, AB T5E 5S7 

 
MJC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION  (Inc. No. 20629751 ) 

19 Lancaster Crescent 

St. Albert, AB T5T 5R7 

 
SEADRIFT PROPERTIES LTD. (Inc. No. 20272010) 

803 Wheeler Road West 

Edmonton, AB T6M 2E5 

 
DLANOR DEVELOPMENTS LTD. (Inc. No. 201597725) 

17515- 106A Avenue 

Edmonton, AB T5S 1M7 

 
407904 B.C. Ltd., (Inc. No. 407904) 

799 Young Road 

Kelowna, BC V1W 2K7 

159



FORM_E_V20 

LAND TITLE ACT 

FORME 

 SCHEDULE PAGE    8   OF   8   PAGES  

ENTER THE REQUIRED INFORMATION IN THE SAME ORDER AS THE INFORMATION MUST APPEAR ON THE FREEHOLD TRANSFER FORM, MORTGAGE FORM, OR GENERAL 

INSTRUMENT  FORM. 

 

 

 

10. Additional or Modified Terms : 
 

Notwithstanding anything herein provided to the contrary, the Mortgagor and the Mortgagee expressly 

agree  that 

 
(i) The  Interest Adjustment Date shall be the date on which Encora Engineering Ltd. issues the 

Certificate of Total Performance with respect to the Bridge Upgrade, as that term is defined in that 

certain Partnering Agreement  dated October_, 2014 entered into between the Mortgagor and the 

Mortgagee, a true copy of which was certified by the City Clerk of the Mortgagee on October_, 2014. 

 
(ii) The Last Payment Date and the Balance Due Date as indicated ir. paragraphs S(i) and 5(1) shall be 
the earlier of: 

 
a. That date upon which the Mortgagor shall commence construction of the Development on the Lands 

charged by this Mortgage; or 

 
b. June 30, 2019. 

160



C A N Y O N  C R E E K  P R O P O S E D  2 N D 
PA RT N E R I N G  A G R E E M E N T  

161



CANYON CREEK  BACKGROUND 

 
Approx. 74 ha property, in SE Kelowna 
East of Gallager’s Canyon and on the way 
to the Myra Canyon Trestles 
Proposed 110 Lot bare land strata 
subdivision 
 
 
 

162



CANYON CREEK  BACKGROUND 

1st Partnering Agreement Canyon Creek (CC) -
received approval of rezoning to large lot 
Residential (RR2) in exchange for; 

Park lands (approx. 50 ha) 
Lands they acquired to facilitate McCulloch road 
improvements, and 
Repayment including interest for;  

the cost of lands the City expropriated  
the cost of the McCulloch road improvements that 
were undertaken. 
City received full repayment of $1,626,768.50 
(inclusive of interest)in spring 2014 
 163



C A N Y O N  C R E E K  B A C K G R O U N D  

Bridge over KLO Creek is reaching it’s 
functional lifespan. 
CC remains years away from development 
& do not wish to replace the bridge at 
their cost until they proceed. 
City has no means to ‘compel’ the Bridge 
replacement at this time. 

164



CANYON CREEK  BACKGROUND 

165



MCCULLOCH ROAD  BR IDGE   

166



CANYON CREEK  BACKGROUND 
 

 

Staff proposed a 2nd Partnering Agreement 
Bridge / approach redesign completed 
Estimate of total works approx. $900,000 (incl. 
interest) 
Recommend a 4 year term / 4% interest secured 
by a first Mortgage 
Repayment with interest shall be made the 
sooner of;  
a) the start of Canyon Creek development or,  
b) June 30, 2019 

 
 

167



PARTNER ING  AGREEMENT 

Benefits to City 
 

Bridge reaching its functional life 
Bridge / approach too narrow for existing 
traffic 
Bridge has weight restrictions 
Route to Myra Canyon Trestles made much 
safer 
Design of new Bridge accommodates cyclists 
City receives full repayment & interest 

 168



PARTNER ING  AGREEMENT 

Next Steps 
Public Notification has been completed 
Subject to Council Approval, Agreement is 
signed by City / Canyon Creek (CC) 
CC has 30 days to provide the Mortgage 
CC Engineer (Ecora) tender the bridge / road 
access works for spring 2015 construction 
Interest accrues effective the date of 
construction Total Performance. 

169



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
October 29, 2014 
 

File: 
 

5460-00 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Darryl Astofooroff, Public Works Manager 

Subject: 
 

Amendment to Policy No. 373 – Tourist Oriented Destination Signs & Bylaw No. 
8120 – Traffic Bylaw 

 Report Prepared by: Laurens Campbell, Engineering Traffic Technician 

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the Report from the Public Works Manager dated 
October 29, 2014 pertaining to recommended changes to amend Council Policy No. 373 – 
Tourist Oriented Destination Signs; 
 
AND THAT  Council Policy No. 373, Tourist Oriented Destination Signs be revised as outlined in 
the Report from the Public Works Manager dated October 29, 2014; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Bylaw No. 11034 being Amendment No. 25 to Traffic Bylaw No. 8120 be 
forwarded for reading consideration. 
 
 
Purpose:  
 
To update Council Policy 373 - Tourism Oriented Destination Signs (TODS) such that wineries 
and golf course names are permissible on tourist destination signs and amend the associated 
fee schedule within Traffic Bylaw No. 8120.   
 
Background: 
 
Council Policy 373 was prepared in cooperation with Tourism Kelowna and in consultation 
with local tourism operators.  Council adopted Policy 373 during the regular Council meeting 
of March 24, 2014. 
 
The objectives of the policy are: 

 Minimize sign proliferation in order to maintain road safety and avoid driver confusion 

 To ensure clear way-finding for tourists and residents in order to optimize business 
success and to present tourists with clear and consistent directional signage. 

 Set eligibility criteria for applicants 

 Formalize the application process 

170



 Have a self-funding program that recovers sign manufacturing, installation and 
administration costs from the sign beneficiaries. 

 
After adoption, numerous winery operators realized that implementation of the new policy 
would see business names removed from some of the signs, in an effort to reduce the clutter 
and make the signs more legible. 
 
Council asked staff to clarify the details of the policy at the morning Council meeting on June 
14, 2014.  Staff provided an overview of the policy and confirmed that the policy was in 
response to the new Services and Attractions Manual that was developed by the Ministry of 
Transportation and Infrastructure over the past couple of years. Policy 373 was to be 
consistent with the Ministry’s new manual. 
 
The resolution from the June 14 meeting (R393/14/06/09) is as follows; THAT Council directs 
staff to hold off on the implementation of Policy 373 AND THAT staff report back to Council 
with options for amending the policy. In addition to the resolution, Council directed staff to 
include winery and golf course names on signs. 
 
Staff recommends that Policy 373 be amended to include winery and golf course names at 
major decision points (intersections) on arterial and major collector roads.  Generic wine 
route signs would be installed on the minor roads, until a turn off of the route is required to 
access a facility.  See example in Appendix ‘A’.   
 
Staff recommends that the FEE SCHEDULE ‘A’ of Traffic Bylaw No. 8120 be amended to 
include a fee for ‘Personalized signs for wineries and golf courses’ at $210 per sign. This is an 
increase of $30 to the previous sign fee to cover the cost of additional sign size and lettering.   
 
This amendment would have costs associated with sign installation exceeding current budgets 
if changes to all existing signs were implemented in 2015. Staff will therefore implement 
within existing resources during 2015 and 2016.  If implementation requires more than 2 
years, additional budget will be requested. 
 
The implementation strategy would include; 

1. Clean up areas on a priority basis that currently have excessive or confusing signage 
2. Consolidate all signs into a more legible and consistent format 
3. Take applications for new signs 
4. Remove illegal signs 

 
Internal Circulation: 
Stephen Fleming - City Clerk 
Fred Wollin – Traffic Operations Supervisor 
Moudud Hasan – Manager, Transportation and Mobility 
Carla Weaden – Director, Communications and Information Services 
Greg Wise – Bylaw Services Manager 
 
 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
City of Kelowna Traffic Bylaw 8120 
 
 

171



Existing Policy: 
Council Policy 373 – Tourist Oriented Destination Signs 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations:  Variable 
 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
An open house was held on February 19, 2014, with Tourism Kelowna and approximately 30 of 
their stakeholders.  The information was well received and all attending were in favour of 
moving forward with the policy, with the hope that new applicants can have signs installed by 
the beginning of the tourist season. 
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Personnel Implications: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
D. Astofooroff, Public Works Manager 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:  
 
 
cc: Corinne Boback, Legislative Coordinator 

 

 

172



POLICY 373 

 

Council Policy 
Tourist Oriented Destination Signs 

APPROVED @ 

 

City of Kelowna 
1435 Water Street  
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4   
250 469-8500 
kelowna.ca 

Contact Department: Civic Operations – Traffic Operations 

   

Policy Statement 

Clear and consistent Tourist Oriented Destination Signs (TODS) assist visitors and residents with getting to major attractions within the 

city.  Less roadside sign clutter decreases driver confusion, is easier to understand and maintain and does not compete with other 

important traffic control devices.  This contributes to a safer road network.    

 

Purpose 

 To ensure clear way-finding for tourists in order to optimize business success and to present tourists with clear and consistent 

directional signage; 

 Set eligibility criteria for tourist attraction operators; 

 Formalize the application process to qualified tourist attraction operators; 

 Minimize sign proliferation on City roadways, in order to maintain safety and to avoid driver confusion at all times; 

 Recover sign manufacturing, installation, maintenance and administration costs; and 

 integrate with the current provincial signage program 

The following policy is intended to be consistent with the British Columbia Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure’s ‘2013 

Service and Attraction Sign Manual’ and the Transportation Association of Canada’s ‘Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices’.  The 

current volume of signs at some locations is too high to be effective.  The intent is to modify these installations for clarity and 

consistency with best practices. 

 

 

Background 

The City of Kelowna’s practice has been to allow attraction signs on the city road network, if the business qualified for the signs under 

the Provincial Service and Attraction Sign Policy.  In 2011, the province changed their policy, advising applicants that they would need 

to apply to the local road authority first, and if the signage is approved on the local road system, the Ministry of Transportation and 

Infrastructure (MoTI) would install the supporting signs on the provincial highway. 

 

Tourist Oriented Destination Signs (TODS) are an integral part of our transportation system.  The message conveyed on signs should be 

consistent with national standards so that they are easily recognized and interpreted.  TODS  benefit tourists and businesses but should 

not be so prolific as to detract from other traffic control devices.  The TODS system is designed to direct road users, destined for tourist 

facilities, from provincial highways to local businesses.  The signs are intended for traffic direction and not for advertising.  All signs for 

tourist attractions on City of Kelowna roadways must be installed under the City of Kelowna TODS program.  Home-made or 

unapproved signs are not permitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Procedure 

173



CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 373 Page 2 of 5 

Application 

An application for Tourism Oriented Destination Signs on City of Kelowna roadways can be made through the City of Kelowna, Traffic 

Operations department, located at the City Works Yard or on-line at www.kelowna.ca 

Facilities which are eligible for TODS 

 For an operation to be eligible for signs, it must meet the following basic criteria: 

 Comply with all Federal, Provincial and Municipal regulations. 

 Maintain a valid Business License. 

 If the attraction is located just outside the Kelowna city limits, but primary access is through Kelowna, consideration may be 

given to signs within Kelowna city limits. 

 Be open to the general public and serve tourists. 

 Be accessible by public roads. 

 Be a registered stakeholder with Tourism Kelowna and advertise its location, season, hours of operation and contact 

information in tourism publications. 

 Be open at least five days per week for a minimum of 12 consecutive weeks per year.  Shorter term openings will only be 

considered if the attraction is a significant traffic generator and at the discretion of the program administrator.   Dates should 

be displayed on the signs e.g. May to Sept. 

 Must have regular, stated hours of operation. 

 Facilities must have appropriate signage on their own property so that they are easily identifiable from the fronting roadway. 

 

Facilities which are not eligible for TODS: 

 General commercial enterprises (including malls, plazas and shops) 

 Restaurants, pubs, bars and, nightclubs 

 Attractions located within urban centres 

 Fruit/vegetable stands 

 Cemeteries 

 Antique Shops 

 Cinemas/Theatres 

 Bowling Alleys 

 Driving Ranges 

 Mini Golf Courses 

 Souvenir/Gift Shops 

 Public or private Primary, Elementary, Middle and High Schools 

 Religious Facilities  such as churches and mosques 

 Essential Services such as gas, food, hotel/motel lodging 

 U-pick operations 

 Neighbourhood park facilities 

 Subdivisions, neighbourhoods and real estate developments 

 Facilities who’s primary visitors are invited guests 

 Locations already covered by existing way-finding sign programs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eligible Facilities: 

Any eligible facility can only be classified and signed as a single type of attraction.  It is possible that not all eligible facilities will be 

granted signs. 

 

174

http://www.kelowna.ca/


CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 373 Page 3 of 5 

Bed & Breakfast 

Bed & Breakfasts are a type of smaller lodging establishment that are signed using a distinctive symbol and meet the following criteria: 

 Provide, at a minimum, 3 units for overnight accommodation 

 Lockable door for each unit 

 Provide at least one meal for guests, typically breakfast 

 Provide at least one dedicated bathroom for guests 

Wineries/Breweries/Distilleries 

 Registered with BC Wine Institute 

 Participant of Kelowna ‘Wine Trails’ program 

 Must produce the product on site 

 Must offer tours/tasting on site 

Heritage Sites 

Heritage sites include significant heritage sites, typically registered with Heritage BC 
 
Heritage Site Types: 

 First Nations Heritage Sites  

 Historic/Heritage Villages or Buildings  

 Historic Train Tours 

 Interpretive Centres  

 Museums  

 Provincial Historic Sites 

Cultural Attractions 

Cultural Attractions include attractions that express traditions, aesthetics, values and customs passed along from generation to 

generation 

Cultural Attraction Types: 

 Artisan Demonstration Studio  

 Building of Unusual Construction  

 Live Performing Arts Theatre 

 Outdoor Live Performing Arts Theatre  

 Public Art Gallery 

Entertainment Attractions 

Attractions with the main purpose of providing an experience for tourists.  These should involve amusement, excitement, fun and/or 

entertainment. This includes, but is not limited to: 

 Aerial Tramway  

 Casinos  

 Horse Racing 

 Racetracks/Raceways/Speedways  

 Suspension Foot Bridge  

 Theme (Amusement) Park 

 Zip-lining 

 

 

 

Natural Attractions 

Natural Attractions are significant geographical, biological, or geological features in the environment, which may include a 
scenic destination with a combination of natural and man-made features. Destinations must be supported by 
infrastructure for travelling public (signage, access to public road, adequate parking) 

175



CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 373 Page 4 of 5 

 

Natural Attraction Types: 

 Botanical or Display Garden  

 Forest, Wood, or Tree Related  

 Natural Hot or Mineral Spring 

 Significant Public Beach 

 

Educational Attractions 

May be a natural or human-made attraction, whose main purpose is to educate from a social, business/industrial, cultural, 
scientific, and/or historical perspective, with the intent of providing visitors with the opportunity to acquire knowledge, 
skills or abilities.  Educational attractions must be supported by infrastructure for travelling public (signage, access to 
road, adequate parking) 

Educational Attraction Types: 

 Fish Hatcheries  

 Hydroelectric Dam Tours  

 Industrial Tours 

 Mine Tours  

 Regional Zoo 

 Colleges and Universities 

 

Agri-Business Attractions 

Agri-Business is an enterprise that combines the natural setting and agricultural products with a tourism experience.  This includes a 

wide spectrum of products and services. 

Agri-Business Types: 

 Cidery  

 Dairy Products  

 Plant Tours  

 Equestrian Centre 

 Farm Tours  

 Fish Farm (Commercial) Tours  

 Honey/Mead Producer 

 

Sign Types and Design: 

Mainline signs - Signs located along provincial highways advising of the direction of local attractions or services (Ministry of 

Transportation guidelines). 

Trailblazing signs - Signs located along City of Kelowna roadways, guiding tourists from provincial highways, to the attraction. 

Confirmatory Signs - Signs located either after a turn or mid-block to confirm to drivers that they are on the correct route. 

Personalized Signs – Standard trailblazing sign showing attraction/facility name 

All sign graphics will be consistent with service and attraction signs specified by the BC Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure.  

Signs will be made of retro-reflective sheeting material, with white legend and symbol on a blue background and will show the same 

colour and shape by night or day.  At minimum, signs will contain a symbol and a directional arrow. 

With the exception of wineries and golf courses, symbol signs only will be permitted on arterial and major collector roadways - no 

specific names of attractions on those roads.  A personalized sign may be used where a turn off of the arterial or major collector road is 

required. 

 

176



CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 373 Page 5 of 5 

Example:    Personalized signs will contain the standard symbols along 

with the destination name, directional arrow and possibly the distance.  Logos will not be permitted.  Personalized signs will be kept to 

a minimum and will only be permitted once the route to a single attraction splits from the main route and/or travel onto a minor road is 

required. 

Sign Size: 

 Single signs on arterial and major collector classes of roads will be a maximum size of 30cm high x 120cm wide.  Where 

signs will be grouped with other attraction signs on a single panel, there will be a maximum of four attractions per panel. 

 Stand-alone signs, for a single attraction, placed along minor collector or local classed roadways will be a maximum size of 

30cm high x 90 cm wide.  Signs will be grouped with other attraction signs on a single panel.  There will be a maximum of four 

attractions per panel. 

Sign Location: 

Where space permits, facilities will be signed along one route, which will lead motoring tourists to their destination in a reasonably 

direct manner.  Signs will be limited to locations where a change in direction to the destination is required.  Generally, signs for a single 

facility will not be permitted on multiple routes.  Routes will be determined by the Public Works Manager or their designate, in 

consultation with the business owner/operator. 

Tourism signs must not interfere or detract from other traffic control devices or signs.  Priority will always be given to traffic signals, 

regulatory, warning and other signs used for traffic control by the City. 

The number of attraction signs approaching an intersection will be limited to a single panel of up to four attractions.  A second panel can 

be considered if it can be located at least 50m away from the first panel.  Signs will be mounted on existing infrastructure, wherever 

possible. 

Multiple similar attractions, where signed along a common route, will utilize a single sign until a change in routing is required.  For 

example, multiple golf courses could be directed down an arterial road, from the highway, until the route splits in order to access the 

different golf courses. 

Any variation will be at the discretion of the Public Works Manager or their designate. 

Any existing unauthorized signs will be removed by the City of Kelowna and will not be returned to the owner. 

Businesses that meet guidelines and wish to participate in the City of Kelowna’s TODS Program, once it is at capacity, will be placed on a 

waiting list until a space becomes available. 

Sign Maintenance 

The City of Kelowna will maintain an inventory of signs.  The City of Kelowna does not inspect tourism signs on a regular basis.  Missing 

or damaged signs will need to be identified by the sign beneficiary.  The City will replace signs where necessary.  Repair/replacement 

costs will be as per the fee schedule. 

 

Fees 

All Fees are identified in Bylaw No. 8120 – City of Kelowna Traffic Bylaw 

 

Amendments 

177



T O U R I S T  O R I E N T E D  D E S T I N A T I O N  S I G N S  

Proposed revision to Council Policy 373 

178



M O T I  S E R V I C E S  A N D  AT T R A C T I O N  M A N U A L  

179



P O L I C Y  3 7 3  

  From these    To this 

180



P O L I C Y  3 7 3  -  C O N D E N S E D  S I G N A G E  

181



P R O P O S E D  R E V I S I O N  TO  P O L I C Y  

182



T R A I L B L A Z I N G  S I G N S  

183



184



1 
 

Report to Council 
 

Date: 
 

11/5/2014 
 

File: 
 

0610-53 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Don Backmeyer, Sport & Event Development Manager  

Subject: 
 

Community Sport Delivery Program 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives the report from the Sport & Event Development Manager regarding the 
development of a Community Sport Delivery Program dated November 5, 2014; 
 
AND THAT Council direct staff to implement the Community Sport Delivery Program as 
outlined in the report dated November 5, 2014;  
 
AND THAT Council approves the use of $35,500 from the Sport Education Fund as the funding 
source for the Community Sport Delivery Program; 
 
AND THAT Council approves the transfer of these funds to the PacificSport Regional Sport 
Centre-Okanagan Society for program administration; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT Council direct staff to report back to Council regarding the success of the 
program and future direction. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To seek Council approval to re-allocate legacy funding from the 2008 BC Summer Games, 
currently used for the Sport Education Grant, to create a  Community Sport Delivery Program.  
 
Background: 
 
Sport Education Grant: 
In December 2009, approximately $45,000 of surplus operating funds from the 2008 BC 
Summer Games Society was transferred to the City for the creation of a Sport Education Grant 
(Council Policy 349 Schedule 1).  The grant was designed to provide financial assistance to: 

 Local coaches or officials interested in upgrading their training and/or certification 
beyond introductory levels. 

 Local sport organizations hosting advanced sport development courses/seminars for 
local coaches and officials.  

185



2 
 

 
These funds, totaling $45,000, was intended  to be dispersed through a granting process over 
a three year period of $15,000 annually, with a provision for unused funds to be carried 
forward. To date, only $6,500 of the initial $45,000 has been accessed by individual coaches, 
officials and Local Sport Organizations. Twelve different sports have benefited from the Sport 
Education Grant including: Athletics, Boxing, Swimming, Free Style Skiing, Diving, Speed 
Skating, Gymnastics, Volleyball, Basketball, and Taekwondo (see attached Schedule 2).  The 
Sport Education Grant is administered by PacificSport Regional Sport Centre-Okanagan Society 
(PacificSport Okanagan) on behalf of the City of Kelowna’s Active Living & Culture Division.   

History of Regional Sport Program 
Prior to 2007 the Province of BC supported a Regional Delivery Program, in conjunction with 
Local Sport Organizations (LSO’s).  Coaches certified through the Level 3 National Coaches 
Certification Program, were hired to deliver programs and services to athletes, coaches and 
volunteer leaders, in their home communities.  These coaches worked to provide specific 
sport programs from entry level to high performance, at the community level. 

After 2007, a new Provincial sport strategy focused on high performance athletes in the lead 
up to the 2010 Vancouver Olympics.  Funding parameters were changed and as a result, 
funding was directed to areas of highest population density (Lower Mainland and Victoria) and 
regional coaches no longer received this funding. 

The impact of this “migration” of resources” from the region had on sport in the Okanagan 
includes: 

 Reduction in the number of trained/certified coaches in the region 

 Reduction in the level of technical support provided to coaches 

 Decreased sport participation opportunities 

 Decreased quality of sport specific programming 

 Decreased commitment to sport performance initiatives 
 

Community Sport Delivery Program 
To address these consequences, Active Living & Culture is proposing to direct $35,500 of the 
funds allocated to the Sport Education Grant to create a new Community Sport Delivery 
Program. The new Community Sport Delivery Program’s objective is to enhance the provision 
of local sport development and participation opportunities by re-creating some of the best 
components of the community based “Regional Delivery Program” model.   
 
The funding formulae has City funds being matched by additional funds from PacificSport 
Okanagan.  Successful applicants will be required to match the combined City/PacificSport 
funds. This program model multiplies the City’s financial contribution four times.  The City’s 
contribution of $35,500 will translate into a $142,000 of resources dedicated to the local 
sport delivery system. 
 
Funds will be dispersed to Local Sport Organizations through a two year funding cycle starting 
in the spring 2015.  The funds will be allocated via an application and evaluation process.  
There will be an application intake for summer sports beginning in January of 2015 and a 
separate intake for winter sports later in 2015. 
Program funds will be dedicated to hiring local community coaches or administrators in 
specific sports.  These paid positions will ensure the provision of a wide range of sport 
programs and services to local athletes, coaches and volunteers from beginner to competitive 

186



3 
 

levels. The coaches/administrators will focus their efforts on sport development, sport 
performance and sport participation initiatives.  Positive outcomes anticipated from this 
program include: 
  

 Community Coaches/Administrators will serve as course facilitators, mentors and 
resource persons to providing  enhanced coach education and training  

 Technical support for new sport program partners will be provided locally  

 Increased sport participation opportunities will be available in the community.  

 A greater level of connectivity and accountability will be established with the local 
sport community.  

 Quality sport-specific programs and services will be offered locally to athletes and 
coaches on a regular basis.   

 Locally based high performance athletes will receive increased levels of support and 
service.  

 
Process to Access Program 
If approved, the program will be initiated with a call for submissions by PacificSport 
Okanagan. 
 

1. Local Sport Organizations will apply to the program by filling out an application form 
(attached as Schedule 4) for a grant of $2,500 to $5,000 per year.  

2. A review team will conduct an analysis of submissions based on; 
a. Impact on the sport community. 
b. Financial support Local and Provincial Sport Organization (PSO) 
c. Alignment with the Canadian Sport 4 Life (CS4L) model 
d. Plans to provide various levels of programming from participation to 

performance 
e. Local Sport Organizations  “track record” in the community 
f. Need and willingness to engage in sport development  

3. PacificSport Okanagan will then create a short list from submissions received. 
4. Short listed Local Sport Organization will be contacted and required to submit a 

detailed sport plan outlining their goals, objectives and delivery strategy for this 
program 

 
This sport plan will provide details on program implementation and will be evaluated 
using the following criteria; 

 Athlete development plan 

 Coach development plan 

 Alignment with CS4L, Long Term Athlete Development and physical 
literacy initiatives 

 Financial Stability 

 Community Outreach  

 Support (PSO and partner clubs) 

 Management 
 

Upon approval of the submitted sport plan and confirmation that matching funds are in place 
Local Sport Organizations will be granted the amount applied for and the program will be 
implemented. 
 

187



4 
 

Should Council support the recommendations, the Community Sport Delivery Program will be 
administered by PacificSport Okanagan, on behalf of the City of Kelowna’s Active Living & 
Culture Division.  The grant money requested will be transferred to PacificSport Okanagan to 
administer the program. 

The current Sport Education Grant Program will continue until available funds ($3000), are 
depleted. 

The Community Sport Delivery Program will be evaluated near the end of the 2 year funding 
cycle for value, effectiveness and future direction.  Staff will report back to Council at this 
time. 

Internal Circulation: Division Director, Active Living & Culture; Director, Financial Services 
 
Existing Policy: Sport Education Grant, Policy 349 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations:  Of the $38,500 remaining funds left in the Sport 
Education Grant reserve, $35,500 will be allocated to the Community Sport Delivery Program 
and transferred to PacificSport Okanagan Society.  $3,000 will be retained to fund the 
existing Sport Education Grant program.  
 
Personnel Implications: While the program will be administered by PacificSport Okanagan, 
City staff will collaborate and monitor the implementation of the Community Sport Devilery 
Program.  
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
Submitted by: D Backmeyer, Sport & Event Development Manager 
 
Approved for inclusion:  J. Gabriel, Division Director, Active Living & Culture                  
 
Attachments: 
Schedule 1: Council Policy 349 (Sport Education Grant) includes application form 
Schedule 2: Sport Education Grant Summary 
Schedule 3: Community Sport Delivery Information Page 
Schedule 4: Community Sport Delivery Program Application 
Schedule 5: Community Sport Delivery Program – Final Scoring Matrix 
 
Cc: Division Director, Active Living & Culture 

Division Director, Finance Services / Corporate & Protective Services 
Division Director, Communications and Information Services  

188



POLICY 349 

Council Policy 
Sport Education Grant 

APPROVED December 7, 2009 

City of Kelowna 
1435 Water Street  
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4  
250 469-8500 
kelowna.ca 

RESOLUTION:  R1155/09/12/07 
REPLACING:  NA 
DATE OF LAST REVIEW:  December 2009 

A.  GENERAL 
Supported by the Kelowna 2008 BC Summer Games Legacy Fund, the Sport Education Grant is designed to provide 
financial assistance to local coaches or officials interested in upgrading their training and/or certification beyond 
introductory levels; and to local sport organizations hosting advanced sport development courses/seminars for 
local coaches and officials.  Examples may include: a level 2 coach pursuing level 3 certification; a referee taking 
training to instruct other referees; a local sport organization bringing in a special guest presenter to speak at a 
conference or to a group of coaches/officials. 

These funds, totaling $45,000, will be dispersed through a granting process over a three year period of $15,000 
annually.  In the event that these funds are not fully allocated in a given year the balance will be carried forward 
and applied to the next budget year until funds are fully allocated. 

The Sport Education Grant will be administered by PacificSport Okanagan, on behalf of the City of Kelowna’s 
Recreation & Cultural Services Department.   

B.  CRITERIA 
Selection of deserving coaches/sport organizations will be based on the following criteria: 

1. Applicant(s) must be a locally based coach/official/organization currently residing or based in Kelowna for
a minimum of 6 months.

2. All applicants must be endorsed by their local sport governing body.

3. The maximum allocation will be $500.00 to any one coach/official or $1000.00 to any one sport
organization per calendar year, and will represent not greater than 50% of the total cost for the upgrading.

4. Grant funds are to be used for course-related expenses only, including: registration fees, facility fees,
instructor fees, transportation, meals and accommodation.

5. Applicants are responsible for initial payment of all course related expenses and will be reimbursed as
approved through the grant application.

6. This grant cannot be accessed in combination with any other City of Kelowna sport grant, i.e.: Sport Event
Development Grant and Athletic Excellence Grant.

C.  FUNDING LEVELS 
Funding levels will be based on the level and location of the course/seminar and will adhere to the following 
guidelines: 

1. Coaches & Officials are eligible for funding up to the following levels:

• Up to $150.00 per coach/official for courses held in the Okanagan

• Up to $250.00 per coach/official for courses held outside of the Okanagan in Western Canada
(BC/AB/SK/MB/NWT/YK/NU)

• Up to $350.00 per coach/official for courses held in Eastern Canada (ON/QB/ND/NB/NS/PEI)

• Up to $400.00 per coach/official for courses held in North America

• Up to $500.00 per coach/official for courses held outside of North America

Schedule 1

189



Sport Education Grant 
2008 BC Summer Games Legacy 

Grant Application 

Page 2 of 4 

 

Recreation & Cultural Services  

Sport Kelowna Centre 

645 Dodd Road  
Kelowna, BC  V1X 5H1   
250 469-8504 

C.  FUNDING LEVELS (CON’T)  
2.  Sport Organizations are eligible for funding up to the following levels:  

 • Up to $250.00 per Sport Organization for sport specific courses (< 50 participants) 

 • Up to $500.00 per Sport Organization for sport specific courses (> 50 participants) 

 • Up to $350.00 per Sport Organization for general multi-sport courses (< 50 participants) 

 • Up to $600.00 per Sport Organization for general multi-sport courses (>50 participants) 

 • Up to $1000.00 per Sport Organization for Sport Conferences (with multi-presenters) 

 

D.  APPLICATION PROCESS  
1. Applications will be accepted year round and reviewed three times per year: April, August and December. 

2. Completed application forms should be submitted prior to the commencement of the event. 

3. All enquiries regarding application eligibility and other pertinent information go through PacificSport 
 Okanagan. 

 

 

E.  APPROVAL PROCESS  
1. Applications will be reviewed by the Sport Education Grant (SEG) Review Team, with representation from 
the  Recreation & Cultural Services Department, Tourism Kelowna and PacificSport Okanagan.   

2. The SEG Review Team will evaluate the application(s), make the final decision, and notify the applicant(s) 
 within thirty (30) days of the review period. 

3. The decisions of the Review Team will be final. 

4. If the applicant is successful in receiving grant monies, they must complete and submit the Post-Event 
 Report (Grant Information Form) and copies of related event receipts prior to receipt of funds.  

5. Upon completion and submission of the Post-Event Report, a cheque requisition will be processed and 
 funds provided to applicant(s). 

 

 

 

 

 
REASON FOR POLICY:  Establish a policy for coach and official education and training grant 
requests from the legacy of the 2008 BC summer games 
 

LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY:  Council Resolution 
  

PROCEDURE FOR IMPLEMENTATION:  See Policy 
  

  

190



2008 BC Summer Games  
Sport Education 

Grant Application 
 

Page 3 of 4 

Recreation & Cultural Services  
Sport Kelowna Centre 
645 Dodd Road  
Kelowna, BC  V1X 5H1   
250 469-8504 

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION  APPLICANT INFORMATION   
 

Local Sport Organization Name 
 

Address 
 

President Phone 
  

Alternate Contact Phone 
  

BC Society # 
 

 
Is this application for a coach, official, sport organization or other? (If you indicated “other”, please list who the application is for) 

□ Coach                 □ Official             □ Sport Organization            □ Other:  

  
Please indicate previous courses/seminars that you have participated in or that your sport organization has offered  
(include all applicable certifications):  
 

 
TRAINING REQUEST   
 

Name of Course/Seminar 
 

Date of Course/Seminar 
 

Location of Course/Seminar 
 

 
Please indicate how this training opportunity will benefit you, your sport organization, and/or sport development in Kelowna 
 

Name of applicant 
 

Address 
 

Phone - Home Work Cell 
   

Email 
 

Date of application 
 

191



CITY OF KELOWNA COUNCIL POLICY NO. 349 Page 4 of 4 

  

 
 
ALLOCATION OF FUNDS  
 

Amount Requested 
 

 
 

If approved, what will the funds be used for? Please itemize your expenditures and list who is paying for these expenses.  
Expenditures Who is covering these costs? 
  

  

  

  

  

 
 

Any other comments 
 

 
 
STATEMENT  
I declare the information in this application is accurate: 
 
              
                
Applicant Name (please print)       Signature  
 
               
Sport Organization Contact (please print)     Signature  
 
           
Date (YY/MM/DD)         
 
 
 
 
Please complete the application form and submit to: 
Sport Kelowna Centre    
Attention:  SEG Review Team 
645 Dodd Road  
Kelowna, BC   V1X 5H1 
Fax #: 250-862-3327 

192



Schedule 2

City of Kelowna

Year Individuals Organizations Granted Sports

2010 4 2 350.00$       Boxing, Basketball

2011 3 5 1,750.00$    Swimming, Free Style Skiing, Diving, Speed Skating, 
Gymnastics, Volleyball, Basketball

2012 3 1 1,450.00$    Basketball, XC Running, Soccer

2013 7 0 2,000.00$    Diving, Basketball, Gymnastics, Taekwondo

2014 4 0 950.00$       Baseball, Gymnastics, Swimming, XC Running

6,500.00$    

Sport Education Grant Summary
Active Living & Culture

193



Community Sport Delivery Program 
Grant Information 

 
 
 

Sport Kelowna Centre 
645 Dodd Street  
Kelowna, BC  V1X 5H1 
250 469-8504 
kelowna.ca 

Schedule 3 

 
Through funding from the City of Kelowna and PacificSport Okanagan, the Community Sport Delivery Program (CSDP) has been 
created to support the staffing needs (i.e. Head Coach, Administrator) of Local Sport Organizations and assist in the delivery of 
local sport participation and performance initiatives.  These paid positions will ensure the provision of a wide range of programs 
and services to athletes, coaches and volunteers from the grassroots to competitive levels that align with the Canadian Sport 
For Life (CS4L), Model 1.    
 
Funds, totaling $70,000.00, will be dispersed to Local Sport Organizations through a two year funding cycle ($35,000.00 per 
year) starting spring 2015.  In the event that these funds are not fully allocated in a given budget year, the balance will be 
carried forward and applied to the next budget year until funds are fully allocated.  The Community Sport Delivery Program will 
be administered by PacificSport Okanagan, on behalf of the City of Kelowna’s Active Living & Culture Division. 

 
 
CRITERIA 
 

Selection of deserving local sport organizations will be based on the following criteria: 

1. Applicants must be a local not-for-profit sport organization (charitable status not required) based and operating in 
Kelowna. 

2. Applicants must be fully endorsed/supported by their provincial sport organization. 

3. Grant funds must be at least equally matched (in cash) and are only to be used for the approved paid position within 
the sport organization. 

4. Program funds may not be used for any existing paid positions 

5. Applicants must be able to demonstrate the organizational need and capacity to support the position 

6. Applicants must be able to lever the CSDP contribution with cash and/or in-kind support (above and beyond the 
matching component) to be directed towards the paid position. 

7. Applicants must not be in a deficit financial situation or have an outstanding receivable with the City of Kelowna.  

8. Priority will be given to sports that participate in BC Games, Canada Games, Olympic and Paralympic Games and 
delivery of programs and services that align with CS4L. 

 
FUNDING LEVELS 
 
Funding levels will adhere to the following guidelines: 

► The maximum funding allocation to any one local sport organization will be $10,000.00 over the two year funding cycle 
($5,000.00 per year). 

► Grant funds must be at least equally matched (in cash) and are only to be used for the approved paid position within 
the sport organization. 

► Approved local sport organizations will be eligible to receive the CSDP funds for a two year funding cycle upon 
completion of the contribution agreement and reporting requirements.  

  

 

194



CITY OF KELOWNA COMMUNITY SPORT DEVELOPMENT GRANT 
 
APPLICATION PROCESS 

1. Applications will be accepted year round and reviewed two times per year:  February and August. 

2. To be eligible for a specific review date, completed applications must be received at least one month prior to the 
review period. 

3. Applications should be submitted to PacificSport Okanagan, c/o Sport Kelowna Centre, 645 Dodd Road, Kelowna, BC, 
V1X 5H1. 

 
APPROVAL PROCESS 

1. Applications will be reviewed by the Community Sport Delivery Program (CSDP) Review Team, with representation from 
the City of Kelowna, Tourism Kelowna and PacificSport Okanagan.   

2. The CSDP Review Team will evaluate the applications, make the final decision, and notify the applicant within thirty 
(30) days of the review period.  Please Note:  In some cases, an applicant may be required to submit further 
information before a final decision can be made. 

3. The decisions of the CSDP Review Team will be final. 

4. A PacificSport representative (CSDP liaison) will be assigned to work with the successful applicant in order to provide 
program accountability and support. 

5. Successful applicants will be required to sign a contribution agreement that will clearly outline the terms and 
conditions of the CSDP grant. 

6. Upon receipt of the signed contribution agreement, the CSDP grant funding for the year will be released.  

7. Successful applicants will be required to complete a program report annually. 

Page 2 of 2 
 

195



Community Sport Delivery Program 
Grant Application 

 
 

Sport Kelowna Centre  
645 Dodd Street  
Kelowna, BC  V1X 5H1 
250 469-8504 
kelowna.ca 

Schedule 4 

 
ORGANIZATION INFORMATION  APPLICANT INFORMATION 

   
Local Sport Organization Name:  Contact Name: 

   

Mailing Address:  Mailing Address: 

   

President: Phone:  Phone (Work): Phone (Home): 

     

BC Society #:  Email Address: 

   

Date Organization was established:  Date of Application: 

   

 
SPORT INFORMATION       

       

Please indicate the number of participants that are registered with 
your organization. 

2014 2013 2012 

 
 

  

At what stages of the CS4L are your participants? 
 

CS4L Stages 
AS 

0-6 yrs 

FUN 

7-9 yrs 

L2T 

10-12 yrs 

T2T 

13-15 yrs 

T2C 

16-18 yrs 

A4L 

19+ yrs 

       

What types of sport programs are offered to participants?  
Please check all boxes that apply for each age group. 
Development (e.g. – skill camps, physical literacy) 

Performance (e.g. – games, competitions)  

Development       

Performance       

When does your sport organization offer programs?   
Please check all boxes that apply for each age group. 

Fall 

Sep-Nov 
      

Winter 

Dec-Feb 
      

Spring 

Mar-May 
      

Summer 

Jun-Aug 
      

 

Please indicate the number of coaches, officials and administrators 
that are supporting your organization. 

2014 2013 2012 
 
 

  

 
Are any of your coaches, officials or administrators paid?  If yes, please 
indicate the number in the space provided. 

Yes No Comments 

   

Are your coaches, officials and administrators required to have training 
or certification(s)?  (e.g. – NCCP, First Aid etc.)  If yes, please specify 
in the space provided. 

  
 

Does your organization provide support or training opportunities for 
your coaches, officials or administrators?  If yes, please specify in the 
space provided. 

  

 

Canadian Sport for Life (CS4L) Stages Key 

AS – Active Sport  T2T – Train to Train 

FUN – Fundamental  T2C – Train to Compete 

L2T – Learn to Train A4L – Active for Life 

 

196



CITY OF KELOWNA COMMUNITY SPORT DELIVERY PROGRAM APPLICATION FORM 

Are there other roles/responsibilities in your organization that are 
being filled by paid staff or volunteers?  If yes, please specify.   

 

Please indicate the training and competition sites used for your sport organization. 

 
Does your organization require specific facilities/fields for the delivery 
of your programs?  If yes, please provide a brief description in the 
space provided. 

Yes No Comments 

  
 

Does your organization require specific equipment for the delivery of 
your programs?  If yes, please provide a brief description in the space 
provided. 

  

 

Does your organization host any events/competitions? If yes, please 
specify in the space provided.   

 

Does your Provincial Sport Organization endorse/support your 
application?  If yes, please indicate their level of support for the 
program. 

  
 

 

Please indicate the greatest successes/achievements for your organization in the previous year: 

Please indicate the most significant challenges that your organization has faced in the previous year: 

Please list your organization’s priorities for the upcoming year: 

How will the community benefit from the development of your sport? 

If approved, how will your organization match funding for this program?  Please specify the amount that your organization will be able to 
match (up to $5,000.00). 

If approved, how does your organization intend to use the funding from this program? 

 
STATEMENT 

I declare the information in this application is accurate.   
 
Representative completing this form: 

Name (print): Address: Signature: Date: 

    

 
Two Board Members of the Organization: 

Name (print): Address: Signature: Date: 

    

    

  

Please complete the application form and submit to:  Sport Kelowna Centre 
      Attention: Community Sport Review Team 

645 Dodd Road, Kelowna  BC  V1X 5H1 
Fax: 250 862-3327 

Page 2 of 2 

197



  Schedule 5 

Community Sport Delivery Program 
Final Scoring Matrix 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Athlete Development (    /25) 
Plans describing: 
• Programs and services to athletes   
• Special initiatives for target populations (women, aboriginal athlete development, and people with disabilities).  
• Competitions 
• Sport education 
• Athlete recognition   
• Talent ID process 
 

System Alignment (     /20) 
Planned programs and services that are: 
• Aligned with CS4L stages and include Physical literacy initiatives 
• Aligned with PSO/NSO LTAD plan 
• Aligned with community sport system (municipal/PacificSport/LSO) 

Coach Development (     /25) 
Plans describing: 
• Programs and services to coaches. 
• Coach mentoring 
• Succession plan 
• Professional and personal development initiatives 
• Coach recognition 
 

 

Financial Stability (     / 10)  
Plans outlining: 
• revenues and expenses for the first two years of operations 
• financial contributions of LSO/PSO  
• fundraising initiatives (events, grants, etc) 
 

 198



  Schedule 5 

 

 
Outreach   (     / 10) 
Strategies that outline: 
• Recruitment and retention of athletes, coaches, officials, etc. 
• Entry level programs 
• Community engagement/development 
• Membership growth 
• Special initiatives 
• Hosting Opportunities 
• Communications/Marketing of the sport 
 

 

 

 

 

Support (     / 5) 
Letters of Support for the sport proposal from: 
• The Provincial Sport Organization (PSO)  
• Partner clubs and organizations  
 

 Management (     /5) 
Plans providing: 
• A brief description of the structure of the LSO management committee   
• A “Sport Contact” to PacificSport 
• A committee position responsible for program delivery  
• Operational structure / policies 
 

 

199



Community Sport 
Delivery Program 

200



Sport  Educat ion  Grant  
2008 BC Summer Games Legacy funding 
Administered by PacificSport Okanagan 
Funding available for:  

Local coaches / officials to upgrade training 
Local sport organizations to host courses / 
seminars 

Only 14% utilized to date 
 

201



BC’s  Reg iona l  Sport  Del ivery  
Program His tory  

Hired professional Coaches to deliver 
programs at the community level 
Became focused on high-performance 
sport leading up to 2010 Olympics 
Resources relocated to lower mainland 
and Victoria 

202



Impact  
Decreased : 

number of trained coaches in 
region 
level of technical support 
provided to coaches 
participation opportunities 
quality of sport specific 
programming 
commitment to sport 
performance initiatives 

203



Proposed Program 
Utilize unused funds in the Sport Education Grant 
Hire sport specific, local coaches or 
administrators to provide sport development 
opportunities 
City funds approved matched by PacificSport 
Okanagan. 
Combined funds to be matched again by the sport 
organization (PSO/LSO). 
Leave $3000 for Sport Education Grant 
 204



Benef i t s  
Local coaches and administrators 
will serve as course facilitators 
New program partners  
Technical and coaching support 
provided locally 
Increase in sport participation 
opportunities 
Greater level of connectivity 
with local sport community  
Quality programming offered 
regularly and locally 
More support for local high 
performance athletes 
 205



Next  Steps  

Approval of program and funding source 
Pacific Sport administers program 
Notifying sport community of opportunity 
Application and approval process 
Partnership agreement with successful 
applicants 
Review after 2 years 

 
206



Better sport, greater health, 
and higher achievement.  

Questions? 

207



Page 1 of 4 
 

Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
November 10, 2014 
 

File: 
 

0245-80 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

Matt Friesen, Accountant, Revenue Branch, Financial Services Department 

Subject: 
 

Amendment  No. 4 to Water Regulation Bylaw No. 10480 

  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No. 11022 being amendment No. 4 to the Water Regulation Bylaw No. 10480 be 
forwarded to Council for reading consideration. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To seek Council’s approval to amend the Water Regulation Bylaw to adjust the Water Meter 
fees and to remove two Utility Billing sections that are no longer required within this bylaw. 
 
Background: 
 
Water Meter fees charged to City of Kelowna customers are outlined in the fee schedule of 
the contract between Corix Utilities Inc. and the City of Kelowna. Changes to the Water 
Regulation bylaw are required to align with the new contracted fee schedule. 
 
The attached Appendix A is the existing “Schedule B – Water Meter Fees and Service 
Charges”. Appendix B is the recommended Revised “Schedule B – Water Meter Fees and 
Service Charges”. 
 
Section 7.8 of the current Water Regulation bylaw refers to interest charged on overdue 
utility accounts. Section 7.9 of the current Water Regulation bylaw refers to the City’s 
transfer to tax policy where utilities outstanding after December 31st in a year are deemed 
taxes in arrears and transferred to the property tax roll of the property incurring the utility 
charges. These sections are not required within the Water Regulation bylaw because they are 
both utility billing processes that are already included in sections 8.4 and 8.6 of the Utility 
Billing Customer Care Bylaw No. 8754. It is recommended that Sections 7.8 and 7.9 of the 
Water Regulation Bylaw be removed. 
 
 
 

208



Page 2 of 4 
 

The following have been included as attachments: 
 
Appendix A: EXISTING Schedule “B” – Water Meter Fees and Service Charges 
 
Appendix B: REVISED Schedule “B” - Water Meter Fees and Service Charges 
 
 
Internal Circulation: 
 
Kevin Van Vliet, Utility Services Manager 
Cam Moody, Cross Connection Program Coordinator 
 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
 
The Water Regulation Bylaw will require an amendment if the recommendations are 
approved. 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
 
Meter rates are intended to recover the costs of the service to the City Utility.  Failure to 
update the Meter Fees and Service Charges Bylaw will result in a discrepancy between 
revenues and costs which would affect other ratepayers. 
 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Existing Policy: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
M. Friesen, Revenue Accountant 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 (Genelle Davidson, CPA, CMA, Director, Financial Services) 
 
 
cc: Kevin Van Vliet, Utility Services Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

  

209



Page 3 of 4 
 

Appendix A, EXISTING Schedule “B” – Water Meter Fees and Service 
Charges: 
 

SCHEDULE “B” 

Water Meter Fees and Service Charges 

1. Water Meter Fees 
Customers shall pay a Water Meter Fee at the time of application for water service as 

follows: 

METER TYPE  

Meter Size I Perl Standard  Omni T2 (Turbo) Omni C2 (Compond) 

5/8" x 3/4"  

(residential) 
$ 268.00   

3/4"   

(commercial) 
$268.00   

1"  (commercial) $ 285.00   

1.5" (commercial)  $ 1,100.00 $1367.00 

2" (commercial)  $ 1,428.00 $ 2,817.00 

3" (commercial)  $ 2,292.00  $ 3,155.00  

4" (commercial)  $ 4,065.00  $ 5,247.00 

6" (commercial)  $ 6,247.00  $ 8,061.00 

8" (commercial)  $ 8,572.00   

4” Protectus fire 

service meter 
$ 6,837.00   

6" Protectus fire 

service meter 
$ 9,690.00   

8" Protectus fire 

service meter 
$ 15,271.00   

 

 

210



Page 4 of 4 
 

Appendix B, REVISED Schedule “B” – Water Meter Fees and Service 
Charges: 

SCHEDULE “B” 

Water Meter Fees and Service Charges 

1. Water Meter Fees 
Customers shall pay a Water Meter Fee at the time of application for water service as 

follows: 

METER TYPE  

Meter Size Standard Turbine Compound 

5/8" x 3/4"  

(residential) 
$ 251.00   

3/4"   

(commercial) 
$ 251.00   

1"  (commercial) $ 325.00   

1.5" (commercial)  $ 1,178.00 $1,695.00 

2" (commercial)  $ 1,428.00 $ 2,440.00 

3" (commercial)  $ 2,267.00 $ 3,256.00 

4" (commercial)  $ 3,680.00 $ 5,195.00 

6" (commercial)  $ 5,680.00 $ 7,230.00 

8" (commercial)  $ 8,492.00  

4” Fire line $ 8,170.00   

6" Fire line $ 10,885.00   

8" Fire line $ 16,125.00   

 

 
 

211



212



213



Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
November 10, 2014 
 

File: 
 

0912-20-219-020 

To:  
 

City Manager 
 

From: 
 

J. Hancock, Real Estate Services Manager 

Subject: 
 

2014-11-10 Report - Airport License Agreement - Fortis 2014 

 Report Prepared by: Jeff Hancock, Real Estate Services Manager 

 

Recommendation: 
 
That Council approve the City entering into a License Agreement with Fortis BC Inc. in order 
to accommodate Fortis BC Inc.’s ongoing need to access and expand electrical works on the 
Airport lands, including those leased by the City from the Federal Government; 
 
AND THAT the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to execute all documents necessary to 
complete the License Agreement. 
 
Purpose:  
 
To allow Fortis BC Inc. the necessary authority to construct and maintain their electrical 
works at the Airport through a License Agreement. 
 
Background: 
 
The City of Kelowna and Fortis BC Inc. have agreed to enter into a License Agreement in order 
to provide Fortis BC Inc. the necessary tenure they require to operate and expand their 
electrical facilitates at the Airport (See Schedule A & B for the properties covered by the 
License Agreement).  
 
This form of tenure provides the most flexibility, as it can be easily updated or changed to 
demark expected expansion at the Airport. Transport Canada has reviewed the License 
Agreement and has no concerns. 
 
 
 
 
 
The table outlines some of the key terms of the License Agreement: 
 

214



2 
 

Term Expires 2034 (no automatic renewal) 

Financial Considerations  No financial considerations associated with 
the License Agreement  

Approval Provides the Airport Director additional 
authority over access and future works  

 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
 
There are no costs associated with entering into the License Agreement with Fortis BC Inc. 
 
 
Internal Circulation: 
 
Director, Airport 
Director, Real Estate 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
 
Existing Policy: 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements: 
Personnel Implications: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
Communications Comments: 
Alternate Recommendation: 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
J. Hancock, Manager, Real Estate Services 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:         D. Edstrom, Director, Real Estate Services 
 
Attachments: Previously Approved Council Resolution  
 
cc:  S. Samaddar, Director, Airport 

 

  

215



3 
 

Schedule A 
 
Lands Covered by the License Agreement: 
 

LEGAL PID CIVIC OWNER 

Lot 1 Plan 1929 011-071-125 5997 Hwy 97 N City of Kelowna 

Lot 19 Plan 1502 011-518-162 5837 Hwy 97 N City of Kelowna 

Lot A Plan KAP89704 028-015-061 196 Convair Pl City of Kelowna 

Lot B Plan KAP89704 028-015-070 5600 Aerospace Dr City of Kelowna 

Lot C Plan KAP89704 028-015-088 5650 Aerospace Dr City of Kelowna 

Lot 18 Plan 1502 011-518-154 5550 Aerospace Dr City of Kelowna 

Lot 6 Plan 1502 011-518-146 5525 Airport Way City of Kelowna 

Lot 1 Plan 11796 009-458-921 4680-4720 Old Vernon Rd City of Kelowna 

Lot 2 Plan 1629 011-510-544 4310 Old Vernon Rd City of Kelowna 

Lot 3 Plan 1629 011-510-625 5269 Hwy 97 N City of Kelowna 

Lot 3 Plan 11796 009-459-014 5533-6305 Airport Way HMQ in Right of Canada 

Lot 7 Plan 1502 011-518-189 5540 Airport Way HMQ in Right of Canada 

Lot B Plan 41159 013-949-101 4125 Conroy Rd HMQ in Right of Canada 

 
  

216



4 
 

Schedule B 

217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



L I C E N S E  A G R E E M E N T  –  F O RT I S  
Kelowna International Airport 

 

227



L O C AT I O N  O F  S U B J E C T  P R O P E RT Y  

228



P R O P E RT Y  L I S T  
 

229



L I C E N S E  S U M M A RY  
Term Expires 2034 (no automatic renewal) 

Financial Considerations  No financial considerations associated with the License 
Agreement  

Approval Provides the Airport Director additional authority over 
access and future works  

230


	Agenda
	2. Draft Minutes - November 3, 2014 PM Regular Meeting.pdf
	3.1 2014 11 10 Report  OCP14-0019 Z14-0036  (W of) Mountainside Dr.docx
	3.1 2014 11 10 Attachments OCP14-0019 Z14-0036 W of Mountainside Dr.pdf
	3.1.1 Bylaw No. 11027 (OCP14-0019).pdf
	3.1.2 Bylaw No. 11028 (Z14-0036).pdf
	3.2 2014 11 10 Report Z14-0041 OCP14-0021 5505 Chute Lake Rd.docx
	3.2 2014 11 10 Attachments OCP14-0021 Z14-0041 5505 Chute Lake Rd.pdf
	3.2.1 Bylaw No. 11029 (OCP14-0021).pdf
	3.2.2 Bylaw No. 11030 (Z14-0041).pdf
	3.3 2014 11 10 Report OCP14-0015  Tower Ranch.docx
	3.3 2014 11 10 Attachments OCP14-0015 Tower Ranch.pdf
	3.3.1 Bylaw No. 11031 (OCP14-0015).pdf
	3.4 2014 11 10 Report Z14-0026 1280 Glenmore Dr .docx
	3.4 2014 11 10 Attachments Z14-0026 1280 Glenmore Dr.pdf
	3.4.1 Bylaw No. 11032 (OCP14-0011).pdf
	3.4.2 Bylaw No. 11033 (Z14-0026).pdf
	3.5 2014 11 10 Report Z12-0054 Extension to Nov 13 2015.docx
	3.5 2014 11 10 Attachment OCP12-0013 Z12-0054.pdf
	4.1 Canyon Creek Partnering Agreement Report to Council (V3) - 5050 McCulloch Road (4).docx
	4.1 Schedule_A_Preliminary_Layout_Review_Correspondence.pdf
	4.1 Schedule_B_Ecora_Engineering_Ltd_July_30_2014.pdf
	4.1 Schedule_C_Land_Title_Application.pdf
	4.1 Canyon Creek Council Presentation October 2014.pdf
	4.2 Final Council Report 2 - Oct 29 2014 - Amended Tourism Signage.docx
	4.2 Tourism Oriented Destination Sign Guidelines Final October 2014.docx
	4.2 TODS Oct 2014 Council.pdf
	4.2.1 Bylaw No. 11034.pdf
	4.3 2014-11-05 Report to Council Community Sport Delivery Program.docx
	4.3 Schedule 1 Sport Education Grant Policy 349.pdf
	4.3 Schedule 2 Sport Education Grant Summary.pdf
	4.3 Schedule 3 Community Sport Delivery Program Grant Information.pdf
	4.3 Schedule 4 Community Sport Delivery Program Grant Application.pdf
	4.3 Schedule 5 Community Sport Delivery Program - Final Scoring Matrix.pdf
	4.3 2014-11-05_Community_Sport_Delivery_Program.pdf
	4.4 BL 11022 - Water Regulation Bylaw - Amendment No 4 - Bylaw 10480 .docx
	4.4.1 Bylaw No. 11022.pdf
	4.5 2014-11-10 Report - Airport License Agreement - Fortis 2014.docx
	4.5 Airport License Agreeement - Executed.pdf
	4.5 2014-11-10 Presentation - Airport License Agreement Council.pdf

